EHERRY
COMMUNICATIONS

INCORPORATED

WAXS INC. ("WAXS®) and Cherry Communications Incorporated (*CCI”) (collectively
*Applicants”), by the wadersigaed, hereby request approval of a transaction whereby WA XS will acquire
ownership and control of CCl, a reseller of telephone services within the State of Florida. CCl is
suthorized as a non-dominent interexchange carrier within the Siate of Florida pursuant to suthority
gransed by this Commission oa November 12, 1992 in Certificate 3134. WAXS is a provider of wireline
and wireless swisching, trangport, and access products for the global telecommunications marketplace.'
Neither WAXS nor amy of its affilisses currendy is affilisted with CCI.

As fully described herein, approval of the transfer of control will permit WAXS and CCI 10
realize significant economic and marketing efficiencies which will enhance CCI's ability to provide high
quality, low cost telecommunications services and to compete more effectively in the telecommunications
marketplace. Accordingly. the granting of this request will benefit the public interest.

Applicants respectfully request expedised trestment of this request in order to permit them to
consurmate the proposed transfer of control transaction as soon as possible but no Ister than September
23, 1998.
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hmmﬂnﬂymummmdlfmhmfuofmmﬁ
of CCl 10 WAXS, this Application assumes the completion of a corporate reorganization involving ;:
WAXS and its corporase parent, World Access, Inc.  Although this bolding company reorganization =
has not been consurenaied, Applicants fully anticipate that the reorganization will bave heen
consurnmated prior 10 closing the WAXS-CCI transaction. As such, ﬂcunmumlhhmmunf
relating 0 WAXS are based on the presumption that the planned corporate reorganization discussed
mmwmuwmwmmwm-ccmmum. In the event, however, that
the corporate reorganization is sot consummated prior to closing or in the event of any other change
in the planned corporate stracture that will have & maserial effect on the transfer of control of CCl,

Applicants will duly amend this Application to notify the Comemission of such change.

1
1919 South Highland Ave, Suitc 129-D, Lombard, Iilinois 60148 630/268-6800



In support of this request, Applicants submit the following information:

1. THE PARTIES

Headquartered in Atianta, Georgia, WAXS is a Delaware company, the common stock of which
is publicly traded in the NASDAQ National Market under the stock symbol "WAXS." WAXS operases
in one business segment as a provider of systems, products, and services to the global telecommunications
marketplace. WAXS develops, nemufactures, aad markets wireline and wireless switching, uransport,
and access products primarily for the United Stases, Caribbean besin, and Latin  American
Telecommumications prodects. WAXS also provides its customers design, engincering, manufacturing,
testing, installation, repair, and other value-added services. Neither WAXS nor its affilistes, bowever,
provide or are authorized to provide selecommunications services within Florida pursusat to suthority of
this Comnission.

WAXS bas the sechaical, managerial, and financial qualificstions to acquire coatrol of CCI.
WAXS is an experienced selocommmuications provider, offering customers complete telecommunications
network solutions, incloding proprietary equipmest, planning and engincering services. "VAXS has
reslized significant improvements in its sales and opersting results since 1994 a3 2 result of straiegic
acquisitions and internel growth initistives. As indicated in WAXS' consolidated financial statements for
the years 19935 through 1997 aad for the three month period ended March 31, 1998, attached hereto as
Exhibit A,> WAXS' working capital and stockholders’ equity have increased from $2.3 Million and $1.2
Million, respectively, at Decemaber 31, 1994, to $120.7 Million and $89.1 Million, respectively, st March
31, 1998. WAXS' ssmaal revennss have grown from approximately $30.1 Million for 1995 10 more than
$92.9 Millioa for 1997. As of December 31, 1997, WAXS had sssets in excess of $241 | Million. With
its substantial fimancial rescurces and by vireue of its experience ss 2 provider of wireline and wireleas
swiiching, transport, and access products for the global telecommunications market, WAXS is well
qualified o scquire comtrol of CCIl.

Cherry Communications Incorporsted ("CC1") is an (llinois corporation which is headquartered
in Lombard, Minois. CCl, currently operating under the protection of Chapter 11 of the United States
Bankyupicy Code, Is a fucilities-based provider of network acoess. The Commission has previously
granted suthority as 2 non-dominest intcrexchange carrier within the state of Florida to CC!. In addition,
CCl is authoriaed, by virtoe of certification, registration or tariff requirements, or oo an uaregulated
baais, to provide resoid intrastate telecommunications services in over 33 states.’

2 As explained in footnote 1, supru, in order to timely obtain the necessary regulatory
approvals for the tranafer of coatrol of CCI to WAXS, this Applicstion assumes the completion of a
holding company reorganization involving WAXS and its corporste parent, World Access, Inc.
Pursuant o the reorganization and relsted securities transactions, WAXS will become the holding
company parent of World Access, Inc. Consequently, slthough the financial sistements provided at
Exhibit A are those of World Access, Inc., sssuming consummation of the reorganization and related
securitics transactions, these staleenents are submiited as properly representing the financial condition
of WAXS.

As further noted in footnote 1, however, in the event that the corporate reorganization
is not consummased prior to closing or in the event of any other change in the planned corporate
structure that will have a muterial effect on the transfer of control of CCI, Applicants will duly amend
this Application to notify the Commission of such change.

3 Cherry Conxmanications, U.K., Lid, ("Cherry U.K."), an affilisie of CCl, provides
telecommunications data and voice service to a closed end user group in the U.K. WAXS will alsn
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CCl is considered s non-dominant carrier. |kt is respectfully submitted that, after completion of
the transaction described berein, CCI will cootinue to be qualified to operate as an authorized non-

Further information concerning CCI’s legal, E!.—Ei—:gsgsn
service were previously scbmitied with CC1's Application for Certificase and is currently available in
Chapter 11 Plaa of Reorgamization. igr.g.ingai_ssg.

ﬂslgggigégiggﬁgﬂ
efficiencies by establishing CCI as & wholly-owned subsidiary of WAXS. Accordingly, WAXS and CCI,
Eg!igirisséoﬂ. ._.EESEE.%_“.
Eiii ?gglaﬂggﬁgg nn
Plan of Reorganization (which was obtzined on September 3, 1998), and approval o Xs’
stockholders.

The proposed scquisition will result in the establishment of & corporase parent of CCl, but wi
not involve a change in the manmer in which CCI provides service 0 customers. .-..585__8_

Commission. CCI, g!ﬁoﬂlﬂn!_ﬂ_&_ﬂ teamn of tn_.i-_al_ gugu
ElgniBE;ﬂaigﬂiggiggﬁ

E%QE%JEEE%!%&
services to the public. %Enﬂ?%%%!z_ :u..__.i-

as their financial viability. .igtﬁgsiglﬁﬂgaﬂaﬁ

ﬁ%%&ggiaﬁgggngsﬁ
EEE%E —_.!B.nl_aisﬁsas will benefit the

public interest by enhancing the ability of WAXS and CCI 1o offer competitively priced products and




Applicants submit the following information:

(a)

®)

(©)

@

®©

Name snd address of Applicants:
WAXS INC.

9435 East Paces Ferry Road, Suite 2240
Atlanta, Georgia 30326

404/231-2025 (Tel)

404/262-2598 (Fax)

Cherry Comamnications Incocporated (“CCI")
1919 South Highland Avemne, Subte 129-D
Lomshard, [ilincis 60148

630/268-6620 (Tel)

630/268-6898 (Fax)

WAXS is a corporation organized under the laws of the State of Delaware.
CCl1 Is a corporation organized under the laws of the State of Dlinois.

Correspondence concerning this matter should be sent to:
Eor WAXS:

Swven E. Fox, Eng.
Robert C. Hussle, Eaq.
Rogers & Hardia LLP
WAXS' Agoroeys

Z700 International Tower
229 Peachiree Street, N.E.
Atmnta, Georgia 30303
404/522-4700 (Tel)
404/525-2224 (Fax)

Eor OCL

Richard Heidecks, Esq., L.C.E.

One of Cherry Communications Incorporated’s Attorncys
Cherry Comxmunications Incorporated

1919 South Highland Avenue, Suite 129-D

Lombard, Nlinois 60148

630/268-6620 (Tel)

630/268-6898 (Fax)

Neither WAXS nor its operating subsidiaries currently provide nor arc suthorized to

operate as a reseller of selephone services within Florida.

CCl is a pon-dominant interexchange carrier within the State of Florida pursuant to
authority gransed by this Commission on November 12, 1992 in Certificate No. 3134

This letter seeks authority for the transfer of control of CClL, a reselier of telephone
services within Florida, to WAXS, & menufacturer and marketer of wireline and wircless
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swirching, traneport, and access products.

(4] In swpport of this certification, sttached hereto as Exhibit B is a list of WAXS® 10% or
greater direct and indirect stockholders, including the address, citizenship, and principal
business of each such stockholder. In addition, sttached hereto as Exhibit C is a list of
all other directorships held by WAXS' directors, exclusive of charitable or trade

associstion positions.
V. CONCLUSION

For the reasons stated berein, WAXS INC. and Cherry Comsmunications Incorporated respectfully
submit thet the public interest, convenience, and necessity would be furthered by grant of this request for
consent to the tramsfer of control of CCl 10 WAXS. Applicants respectfully request that the Commission
authorize the transfer of control described herein to permit the Applicants to consummate the transaction

a0 laser then Sepeember 25, 1998,

Ploase dase-stasxp the enclosed extra copy of this letter and return it in the self-addressed. postage

paid envelope provided. Should you have any questions concerning this matter, please do not hesitate
to contact Richard Heidecke at the mumber listed beiow.

Respectfully submitted,

By:

Steven A. Odosf, Chief Executive Officer
WAXS, INC.

945 East Paces Ferry Road, Suite 2240
Adlants, Georgia 30326

404/231-2028

Lo fecidf oy

One of Cherry Commmnications Incorporated’s Attorneys
CHERRY COMMUNICATIONS INCORPORATED
1919 South Highland Avenue, Suite 129-D

Lombard, Minois 60148

630/268-6620




_ | EXHIBIT A
UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE

COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
As Amended on April 27, 1998

{Mark One)
[X] ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 1997,
OR

[ 1 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission File Number 0-19998

WORLD ACCESS, INC.

(Exact Nams of Registrant 13 Specified in its Chaner)}

DELAWARE 65-0044209
1Sraie of Incorporation JRS. Enployer Identificarion Vo

945 East Paces Ferry Road

Suite 2240
Atlants, GA 30326
tAddress of Principal Execunive Offices} (Zip Code)

(404) 231-2025

'Reglstront's Telgphone Number}

SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12(b) OF THE ACT:
NONE .

SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12(g) OF THE ACT:
Common Stock, Par Value $.01 Per Share

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant (1)} has filed all repons required 1o be filed by Secvion 13
or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 momhs {or for such shorter period
that the Registrant was required to file such reports}, and (2) has been subject 1o such filing requirements for
the past 90 days. Yes B No O

Indicate by check mark if disclasure of delinquent fiters pursuant 1o ltem 405 of Regulation S-K is not
contained herein, and will not be conlained, 10 the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or
information statements incorporatcd by reference in Part i1 of this Form 10-K or any amendments to this
Form 10-K. O

As of April 13, 1998 there were 21,500,280 shares of Common Stock outstanding. The aggregate market
value of the voting Common Steck held by non-affiltates of the Registirant as of April 13, 1998, as based on the
average closing bid and ask prices, was approximately $605,240,000.




WORLD ACCESS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 3,
, i 19%
" ASSETS
Current Assels
Cash and equivaleRIS . . ... coninn it i oo $118,065045 $22.450.082
Accounts receivable . .. ... e e 20,263,971 9.651 884
IOVERIOTIBE ..o ovveonenenena s oann ettt e 22,426,918  10.657.4)2
OTheET CUTTENT ABSCIS .. .\ i v et ne et eninane s renerraneiranennn, 10,923,723 1.533615
Total Curment ABBels . ..ottt ittt ettt 171,679,657  36.322993
Property and eQUIPIMENT ...\ veunsunntn ittt 5,704,585 2,657.661
Investment in afBIAE ... .ooonrin ittt i e e e 5,002,000 -
== L 11 PR P 31,660,201 9.526.140
OThEr BEBLLIE . .o et vt enerr e st e e et 11,236,298 323907
TO1a] AL oottt st a e $225,282. 41 $60.735.966
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS'® EQUITY
Current Liabilities
ShOrt-1erm QEbl .. .ot ittt e S 81,739 S —_
Accounts payable .. ... ... L 9,339,588 3,756,122
Accrued payroll and benefits ........ ..o 2,589,141 1.605.830
Purchase price payable ... ... ... .. i 3,700,000 -
Other accrued HabiBiies ...t in it o e et et 2,219,112 2,999,187
Total Current Liabilities .. ......oooorini i i 17,930,025 3.361.749
Oher TIabi it . . . oottt e st tae e e e e 333,802 —_
Long-1erm debl . ..\ttt e s 115,263,984 —_
Total Liabiities . ...oooirr e it et v e e 133,527,811 8.361.749
Stockholders’ Equity
Common stock, S.01 par value, 40,000,000 shares authorized, 19,306,235

and 16,328,513 issued and outstanding at December 31, 1997 and 1996,

03 = 13§ 193,062 163,285
Capital inexcess of parvalue........ovoiiiiviiiiiiie i 84,162,478  58.517.21%
Note receivable fromaffiliate .. ...... ... oo - (57).634)
Retained earnings (deficit) ...l 7,399,390  (5.734.713)

Total StockhoMers' Equity ... ... 921,754930 52374217
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity ...................... $225,282,741 $60,735,966

The accompanying notes are an integral pait of these consolidated financial statemenis.
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WORLD ACCESS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Yiesr Ended Dicember M,

L *im 199¢ 1908
Sales Of PIOBUCIS .. 1. veverernonernanenrnnssrneaernans $71,391,688 $33,411.079 $17,183,.904
SErviCe TEVERUCE . o o v s ovvnn s ranrsnransaassntsrosaasisias 21,592,794 16.589.123 12,754,385
Total Sales ......oiiriiii e 92,984,482 51,000,202 30.)38,489
Costof products s0ld . ... ...ooviorer i 43,827,123  21.485.696 12,657,218
Cost Of SEIVICES o v vveunsonantorrssnasnieonasaraaseiin, 12,012,674 13519917 11.118.41]
Total Costof Sales ... .o viriere i, 60,844,797  36.005.613 21775629
Gross Profil. . ...vvevirriiannnesrrrinnnnines 32,139.685  14.994.589 6.362,560
Engineering and develOPmMEnt . . . .cvniariaivnrr e 1,861,734 £91.939 577,299
Selling, general and administrative . ....ooovineiiiniin £.999.93) 6.210.324 1,113,559
Amonization of goodwill ... ...l 1,755,798 533919 157.394
Special ChaTges . ... .. .vvrvnr e iaar - - 950.000
Operating Income .. ... 19,522,222 7,358,187 1.523.608
Interest and OIMEr IMCOME . .. v uvnereeraronsmcrraaasronans. 2,503,318 184211 142,632
INIETESt EXPOMSE ..o v vt vrnnavarrranessnnamsr e aatatsanns (1,355.437) _ (318.987) _ (493.797)
Income Before Income Taxes. ..........occmvuvna.. 20,670,103 7631611 1.172,343
[RCOMIE 13K8a v v ovvev v v reearnosstnoranaressostonaoerons 7,536,000 145.069 —
Net INCOME .o errnaarannrransmansrarensans SIJIIJIIIM § 6,773,442 § 1,172,443
Net Income Per Commeon Share:
T3 - R R ) J6 3 525 15
e ]
DIULE . ..o rasae e S .70 46 S 12
ey ==
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding:
- P 17.242403  13.044.432 7,858,953
[0 TH T 2 I PP 13,707,781 _14.329.994 9.083.260

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statemenis.
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Balance at January 1. 1998 ... ... ...

NELINCOMIE .. .ovvver s i iiienaans
Issuance of 2,583,988 shures for stock
warranis and options . .................
Issuance of 1,181,770 shares in private
placement, net of expenses. ............
Issuance of 1.351,601 shares for AIT *
acquisivion . ...l e
Issuance of 317.050 shares for Westec
ACQUISIION ... ... e
Note receivable from alfiliate. nev... ...,
Issuance of 5,596 shares for matching
comtribution te 301K plan .............
Balance a1 December M, 1995 ... ..., ..
Netincome ..........covoviunn e
Issvance of 3.487,300 shares in s¢condary
public offering. net of expenses ... .. ..
lssuance of 635,364 shares for Sunrise
JCQUISTTION ... .
Release of 318.654 shares from escrow for
AT acquisition ... .. ... oieans
Repayment of loan by aililine. ner........

Issvance of $0.000 shares for 1echnology
1723 -2 N
Issuance of 246.906 shares fer siock options
and WARFAMS. . ..o
Retirement of 672,419 vcscroned shares from
1991 injtial public offering ... .... ... ...
lssuance of 2,583 shares for maiching
contibutien to 00K plan . ... . ...

Balance at December 31, 1996 ...........
NeliNCome .. ..ot iinnn ceaninn
Tssuance of 1,255,584 shares for CIS
acquisition ........... .0t
Issuance of 308,205 shares for Galaxy
ACqQUISTION .. ... ... . e
Relcase of 159.327 shares from escrow for
AIT acquisition .. ............ ... ....
Issuance of 121.182 shares for AIT
acquisition ............. ..o,
Release of 50.000 shares from escrow for
Westeg acquisivion. .. .. ..oo i
Repayment of Joan by affiliate............
Issuance of 1.155.360 shares for stock
options and WarraARLy . .. ... .hheae e
Tax benefit (rom exercises of stock options
and warranis. . ... e i
Issuance of 7,091 shares for maiching
contribution to 101K plan ........... ..

Balance at December 31, $997 (... .......

WORLD ACCESS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Capital In Nele Retalned
Common Excess of Receivable Earalngs
Stock Par Value  from Afillare {Dehein) Totalk

§ 69.182 S$14,7763433 §

—  S{1)685.698) § 1,159,917
£172,44) 1172443

25840 6,703,561 6,729,401

11818 2,857,607 2,869,425

10316 2.259.902 22713418

5171 1.023.279 1,028,150
(919,836) (919,836)

] 30,761 20.817

125,583 27.641,54)  (919.838) (12.513.253) 14.334.038

6,778,802 §779°¢q)

BT 25,296,378 25.331,250

6.55)  2,990.38) 2.996.936

2.042.3M) 2.042.373

118.202 31§.202

00 137.020 137.520

2,469 371.629 380.09%

(6.724) 6.724 -

29 28,232 35.261

163,285  58.517.279

(571.634) (3.734.713)  52.374217
13034103 13,134,103

12,859 5,601,560 5,613,419
4,082 4,768,893 4,772,975
892,231 §92,23

1,212 2,168,788 2,170,000
835,625 © 835,625

571,634 571,634

11,850 4,594,299 4,605,852
6,675,000 6.675.000

71 108,303 108.874

$193,062 584,162,478 §
oo LA A8 S

— 5 1.399.390 $91,754930
Srimriaes

The accompanying neles are an integral pant of these cansolidated financial statements.
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WORLD ACCESS, INC, AND SUBSIDLIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Nl NCOMIC . . oot ie s tnnennsraarar st tasarsinanasns

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from (used
by) operaling activilies:
Depreciation and amortization
Income 1ax benelit (rom stock warranis and oplions ...... ..
Provision for inventory reserves
Provision for bad debts
Stock comributed 0 01K plan ... ol
Special charges. .. .. i

..........................

.........................

................................

Changes in operaiing assets and liabilities, ney of effects from

businesses Joquired:
Accounts receivable ...l e
Inventenies
Accounts puyable L e
Other assels and habilities ... .. oo oran il coan
Net Cash Frem (L'sed By) Operating Activities. . . ..
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisitions of businesses .. ... ... i e i
Imestment in z3iliate
Repayments by {!cans 10) affiliates........o.oovviiiinn
Expenditures for properiy and equipment ...................
Technology licenses . .. o i e iiiie e,
Net Cush Used By Investing Activities.............
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Issuance of long-termdebt ... ... . il
Net proceeds rom secondary public offering
Net proceeds frem private equity offerings . .................
Proceeds from exercise of stock warranis and options . ........
Short-term debt borrowings (repayments)
Long-term debt repayvments
Debt issuance costs
Net Cash From Financing Activities. .. ...........,

Inerease in Cash and Equivalents
Cash and Equivalenis at Beginning of Period...., ...

Cash and Equivalents :* End of Period

Supplemental Schedule of Noncssh Financing and Investing
Activities;

Issvance of common stock for businesses acquired

Issuance of commen stock for stockholder notes . ............

Reduction in note receivable from affiliate to recognize
contingent purchase price earned ... ........ e

Conversion of accounts receivable 10 investment in technology
license

.......................................

..................

..............................

.....................................

..............................................

Vesr Ended December 39,

1997

1098

1998 .

S 13,134,103

§ 6.778.542

S L172,44)

3,096,356 1,420,052 $94,484
6,675,000 - —
712,867 197.409 162.335
171,574 167,612 7,568
108,874 31.861 19.317
— - 823,714
(8,796,812)  (288.167) (6.809.851)
(12,137,373)  (5988,385) (! 627,479)
1313371 (46.669)  177.090
(9,290,063) _ (310.306) (1.264.163)
(1,962,103)  1.994910  (6.434.532
(5.945,724)  (436,791)  (649.769)
(5.002.000) — —
(3.319,531) 348202  (1.01 336)
(3.590,978) (1.176.018) (279 571)
_(21,298) _ (528.0%0) —
(17.879.534) (1.792.657) (2.331.676)
111,909,015 - -
—  2833].2:0 -
- —  2.835,000
3,605852 4,251,487  2.961,207
(588,715) (5,510,220)  4.338.556
—  (3,625,000)  (125,000)
(499.552)  (36.536) —
115,426,600 20.390.971 10,009,763
95,584,963  20.593.263  1.133,555
22,380082 _ 1.886.819 753,264
118,065,045 522,480,082 § 1.886,819
S 14285250 § 5.039.309 S 3.301.568
1.828.194
£82.500 $92.500

211919

137.520

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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WORLD ACCESS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE A: GENERAL

Nature of Business

World Access. Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries (the “Company™) operaie in one business segment
as a provider of systems, products and services 1o the global 1elecommunications markeiplace. The Company
develops, manufactures and markets wireline and wireless switching, transport and access products primarily
for the United Siates. Caribbean Basin and Latin American ielecommunications markets. The Company’s
products allow lelecommunications service providers to build and upgrade their central office and outside plant
networks in order 1o provide a wide array of voice, duta and video services 10 their business und resideniial
customers. The Company offers digital switches, cellular base stations. fived wireless local tocp svstems.
intelligent multiplexers. microwave and millimetersave radio systems and other telecommunications network
equipment. The products offered by the Company include those manufactured by the Company as well as
those manufactured by other telecommunications equipment companies. To support and complement s
product sales. the Company alse provides its customers with a broad range of design. engineering,
manufacturing. 1esting. insiallation. repair and other value-added services.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated finuncial statements include the accounis of the Compans and i's wholiv-owned
subsidiaries from their eifective dates of acquisitien {see "Note B”). AH nuitenrial intercompany accounts and
iransactions are eliminated in consolidatien.

The preporation of finarcial staements in conformity with generally accepied acecunung principles
requireés managenient 1o make estimales and assumptions that uffect the reported amcunts of 1sse1s and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities a1 the dae of the financisl sistements and the
reported anounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting peried. Actual resulis could 2iffer from those
estimates.

The estimated fair value of financial insiruments has been determined by the Company usirg avaifable
matket informaticn and appropriate valuation methodologies. However, considerable judairent is required in
intzrpreting data to develop the estimates of fair value. Accordingly. the estimates presented herein aze not
necessarily indicative of the amounts that the Company could realize in a current market exchange. The lair
value estimates presented herein are based on peninent information available !0 marnagement as of the
respective balance sheet dates. Although management is not aware of any factors that weuld significantly
affect the estimated fair value amounts, suzh amounts have not been coniprehensively resalued for purposes of
these financial statements since that date and current estimaies of fair value may differ significamly from the
amounts presented herein.

The fair values of cash equivalenis, accounts receivable, sccounts paable and zccrued ewpenses
approximate the carrying values due 10 their short-term nature. The fair values of long-term debt are
estimated based on current market rates and instrusments with the same risk and maturities and approaimate
the carrying value.

Revenue Recognition

In general. revenues are recognized when the Company’s preducis are thipped or senvices ure rendered.
Occasionally, 1he Company will enter in1o long-term contracis which require percentage of <complelion
Jccounting treatment.

During 1997. the Company recognized approximately 55.3 million of revenues under the percemage of
completion method. Of this amount. approaimately $2.5 million represents costs and esumuated earnings in
excess of billings and is included in Other current assets on the Company’s December 31, 1397 bulince sheer
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Significant Custonmicrs

A portion of the Company’s total sules have Been derived from significanmt customers. During 1997. ho
customes individually accounted for 10.0% of the Company’s 1012l sules. During 1996, one cusiomer accounted
for 10.9% of 1ot sales. During 1993, two customers individually accounted for 22.7% and 15.1% of 10tal sales.

Cash and Equisalents

Cush equivalents include demand deposits with bunks and il highly liquid investiments with original
maturities of three months or Jess.

Accounts Receivahle

Accounts receisable are presented net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of $237.000. $26%,000, and
S 08,000 a1 December 31, 1997, 1996, and 1995, respeciively.

Investment in AffRliate

During November and December 1997, the Company purchased 335,000 shares of NACT Telecommu-
nications. In¢. ("NACT") common stock in the open market for approximately S5.0 million.

On December 31, 1997, the Company entered into a sieck purchase agreement with GST Telecommuni-
cations, Inc. ("GST™) and GST USA. Inc. ("GST USA™). a wholly owned subsidian of GST. to acquire
LI13712 shares of NACT commen steck owned by GST USA. Oa Februan 27. 199% ke Company
completed this purchase increasing its ownership of NACT to approximately 67.3%. On Febiuan 24, 1998,
the Company executed a definitive merger agreement with NACT 10 acquire the remaining 32.7% of NACT
common shares (see "Noe N7).

Earnings Per Share

Effective in 1997, the Company adopled Sitatement of Financial Accounting Standards No 128
“Earnings per Share™. The computation of basic earnings per share is based on the weighted average number
of common shares cuistanding during the period. The computation of diluted earnings per share is based on
the weighted average number of common shares ouistanding plus, when their effect is dilutive, potential
commeon stock consisting of shares subject 1o stiock options, stock warrants and convenible notes. Potential
commen stock shares of 1.465.376. 1,485,562 and 1.22..306 as cf December 31, 1997, 1996 ird (995,
respectively, have been included in coraputing diluted earnings per share. A totul of 994.736. 301,267 and
895,744 shares of common stock for the vears ended December 31, 1997. 1996 and 1993, respeciivelv. held in
escrow from certain acquisitions {see "Note B”), the Company’s initial public ofTering (see ""Note H™') and
the TCSI license agreernent (see "Note E7). were excluded from the earnings per share calculations because
the conditions for release of shares from escrow had not been salisfied.

Reclassifications
Certain items in 1he prior year consolidated financial staiements have been reclassified 1o conform 10 the

current présentaiion.

NOTE B: ACQUISITIONS
AT Acguisition

On May 17, 1993, the Company cniered inlo an iagreement 10 acquire AIT. Inc. ("AIT"). a Lakeland.
Florida based provider of new und used Nerthern Telecom switching systems und reliated circuit beards to the
1elecommunications industry, On July 11, 1995, the transaction was completed in its final form whereby AIT
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was merged with and into Restor-AIT. Ine.. s whoily-owned subsidiury of the Compuny (the “"AIT Merger™).
In connection with the AIT Merger, tha sole stockholder of AlIT,received 885,970 re<iricied <hages of the
Company’s common stock. These shares had un initial fair «alue of approvimately $1.7 snllon.

In July 31995, the Company loaned the sole stockholder of AIT $1.3 million in cash in connection with a
$2,330,000 interest bearing promissory note execuled as an integral part of the merger agreement between the
two companies. An additional $1,030.000 was 1o be loaned 1o the siockhelder as specific accounts receisable,
notes receivable and inventories on AIT's May 17, 1995 balance sheet were collected and/or reatized by the
Company. As of December 31, 1996. the Company had loaned an aggregate of $§2.319.124 to 1he stockholder.
The principal balance of the note as of December 31. 1996 was §571.634. which was fully collateralized by
shares of the Company's common stock pledged by the sole siockholder. As a result of 1his pledge agreement.
the note receivable from the stockholder was accounted for as a reduction of stockholders’ equity. As of
December 31, 1997, the amounts due from the siockholder were paid in full.

In addition 1o the 685,970 shares noted above, the sole stockholder of AIT was issued 637,308 resiricted
shares of the Company’s common stock. These shares were immediately placed into escrow. and alon, with
$2,330,000 in potential cash payments, were 1o be released 10 the sole stockholder over a \wo year period
ending Auvgust 15, 1997 contingent upon the realization of predefined levels of gross profiv from AIT's
operations during Jhis same period. To the extent cash consideration was paid. the sole stockholder was
immediately required to repay the equivalent amount of borrowings outsiznding under the promisson note
described above.

Upon issuance, the 637,308 escrowed shares were valued by the Company st parvalue eniy. or 36,373, As
it became probable that the conditions for release from escrow would be met. the fair market < alue of 1he
shares as measured at that time, along with any conmingent cash payment earred. were recorded 45 2dditional
goodwill and steckholders’ equity, respectively.

As of December 31, 1997. the Company had released al} 637.308 shares from escrow and paid rddivional
cash consideration of $2,330.000 bascd on AIT's gross profit performance. Based on AT s pre-tan income
performance, an additional $3.1 millicn in purchase price was paid 10 the sole stockheider in August 1997 n
the form of 121.182 restricted shares of the Company’s common stock. The net eect of the above hus been 0
increase goodwill and stockholder’s equity by approximately 58.0 million as of December 31, 1997.

As part of a final purchase price settlement agreement eniered into in August 1997, the sole stockholder
of AIT pledged 280,509 shares of the Company’s common steck to the Company to effectively guarantee the
collectibility of certain AIT accounts receivable. During the fourth quarter of 1997 and the first quarter of
1998, these accounis receivable wese paid in full through cash proceeds frem the sale of these pledged shares.

The acquisition of AIT has been accounied for using the purchase method of accounting. Accordingly.
the results of AIT's operaiions have been included in the accompunying censolidated financial s1atements
from May 17, 1995, the cflective date of acquisition. The purchase price wus allocated 10 the assers acquired
and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values as of the date of acquisition. The excess of
purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired. approximaiely $11.6 million. huas been recorded as
goodwill and is being amortized over a 15 year peried.

Westec Acquisition

Cn Cctober 2, 1995, the Company entered into an agreement 1o acquire Westec Commumeations, Inc.
{"Westec), a Sconsdale. Arizona based provider of wireless systems and repasir sences to the cable
television and telecommunications industries. On October 31, 1993, 1he transaction was completed in 1 final
form whereby Wesiec was merged with and into Restor-Westec, Inc. a wholly-onned subsidian of the
Company {the "Westec Merger”™). Restor-\Westec. Inc. subsequently changed its name to Westee Communi-
cations, Inc. In conncetion with the Westec Merger. the sole stockholder of Westec receined 55330.000 and
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272,050 restricied shares of the Company's common stock. These shates had an initial Cair value of
approvimately $200.000. .

As part of the Westec Merger agreement, the sole stockholder of Westec may also receive $1.0 mullion in
additional purchase price (the "Westec Additionat Consideration™) contingent upon 1he realization of
predefined levels of pre-tax income from \Westec's operations during five calendar years beginning in 1996,
This additionsl consideration may be paid, at the oplion of the Company, in the form of cash or resiricied
chares of the Compuny’s common stock valued at the then current market prices. If earmed. 1the Westec
Additional Consideration will be capitalized as additional goodwill und stockhalders’ equity. respectively

In connection with the Westec Merger. the Company entered inlo a Compensalion Agreenient with
Sherman Capitat Group L.L.C. (“Sherman™). a merchant banking firm 1hat had a pre-existing letter of intent
1o acquire Westec. Pursuam to the Compensation Agreement. Shernyvan received $100.000 and 15.000
restricted shares of the Company’s common stock. These shares had an initia) fair value of appronimaieh
$120.000. The compensation paid 10 Sherman has been accounted for as part of the purchase price of Weeree,
[a additien. 200.0C0 resiricted shares of the Company’s commen stock were placed in escron and may be
refensed ta Skerman in installments over a four year period on February 15 of each vear beginning cn
February 13, 1997, comingent upon the realization of predefined levels of pre-tax income frem Wested's
operations. Lpon issuance. the 200.000 escrowed shares were valued by the Company at par salue only. or
$2.000. As it becomes probable that the conditions for release from escrow will be met. the fair market value
of the shares as measured a1 that time will be recorded as additional goodwill and stockholders™ equiny.

The first measurement peried for purposes of releasing escroned shares and paying Wesiee 2 ddiienal
Consideration s Januan 1. 1996 10 December 31, 1996, Wesiec's pre-1ax income for the first mmeaszrement
period failed 1o meet the performance criterion required 10 earn any additional consideration Ia reviewsng
Westec's pre-1an perfermance for the second performance period. Janvary 1. 1637 10 December 31, 1597, the
Company determined that the earn-oul performance criterion was miet. Accerdingly, $0.000 escrened shares
were accounted for as if released 1o Sherman and 5200.000 of Westec Additiona) Censideration »was aceounted
for as if paid o tire sole stockhelder of Westec as of December 31, 1997, The zet effect of this aecouniing v
10 increase goodwill and steckholders equity by approsimately $1.0 muilion and $800.000. respectinels. The
escroned shares were released and Wesiec Additional Consideration was paid on Februany 5. 1998,

The acquisition of Westec has been accounted for using the purchase method of accouniing. Accordingly.
the results of Westec's operatiens have been included in the accompanying conselidated financial s1atements
from October 2. 1995, the effective date of acquisition. The purchase price was allocated 1o 1he asses 2cquired
and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values as of the date of acquisition. The excess of
purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired. currently estimated at approsimately $2.4 nulliop, has
been recorded 15 goodwill and is being amortized over 3 15 year peried.

Sunrise Acquisition

In Februan 1996. the Company entered inlo an agreement 10 acquire Comlech Sunrise. Inc. ("Sun-
rise”). a Livermore, California based manufacturer of multiplexers. digital loop carriers and other intellizent
transpart and access products. On June 18. 1996, after a mandatory registralion process was completed in the
State of California. the transaction was completed in i1s final ferm whereby Sunrise was merged with and into
Restor-Comitech, Inc.. a whollyv-owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Sunrise Merger™). Restor-Comiech.
Inc. subsequently changed i1s name to Sunrise Sierra. Inc. In connection with the Sunrise Merger. the
stockholders of Sunrise received approximately $100.000 in cash and 383481 chures of the Company’s
common stock. These shares had an inivial fair value of approvimately $2.3 miltion.

In addition 10 the 385,481 sharcs noted above, the steckholders of Sunrise were issued 211.763 resineivd
shares of the Compuny’s common stock, These shares were immediately placed into escron, snd along with
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of Apnl 30, 1997, the Company determined that it was highly probable 1hat the conditions fos release and
payment for the first period would be ‘met. Accordingly, 317.427 escrowed shases were accounted for s of
released and $3.5 million of C1S Additional Consideration was accounted for as if paid as of April 30. 1997.
The net effect of this accounting was to increase goodwill and stockholders’ cquity by approximately $6.5
miliion and $3.0 million, respectively, as of April 30, 1997, These escrowed shares were released and CIS
Additional Consideration was paid to the former stockholders of CIS on February 15, 1998. The $3 5 aullion
of C1S Additionul Consideration earned is included in Purchase price payable on the Compans s Decen-
ter 31. 1997 balance sheet,

The acquisition of CIS has been accounted for using the purchase methed of accounting. Accordingly.
the resulis of C1S's operations have been included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements frem
January 1. 1997, the effeciive date of acquisition as defined in the definitive agreement and plan of merger.
The puschase price was allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimared fur
values as of the Juie of acquisition. The excess of purchase price over the fair vajue of nev aseets acquired.
currenth estimated 2 approximately $12.5 million, has been recorded as goodwill and is being amortized over
a 13 vear penod.

Galavy Acquisition

On July 29, 1597, the Company entered into a levter of intent 10 acquire Galany Personal Cen miumica-
vioas Senices. Ine ("Galany™). a Norcross, Georgia based provider of system design, implementation.
cptipvzation and cther value-added radio engineering and consulting services 1o PCS. cellular z5d oiher
cireless telecommisnications service providers. On August 26, 1997, the transacticn was completed 1 iis Saal
‘orm whereby Galiay was merged with and inte Galaxy Acquisition Corp.. 3 wholly-oured subsidizn of the
Company (the “Galaxy Merger”). Galaxy Acquisition Corp. subsequently changed its name 1o G:la
Personal Communications Services, Inc. In connection with the Galaay Merger, the former stocktolders of
Galany receired uppronimately $1.2 million in cash and 262.203 restricted shares of 1he Corpany's commoa
stock. These shures had an initial fair value of approximaiely $4.2 million,

In addition to the 262,203 shares noted above, the former Galaxy stockholders were issued 131.10]
restricted shares of the Company’s common stock, These shares were immediately placed into escrow, and
along with $3.5 million in additional consideration {1he "Galaxy Additiona) Consideration™), will be releared
and paid 1o the former stockholders of Galasy contingent upon the realization of predefined levels of pre-tin
income from Galavy’s operations during four measurement periods between July 1. 1997 and December 31,
2000, The Galaxy Additional Consideration may be paid, a. the option of the Company, in the form of cazh or
resiricted shares of the Company’s common steck vzlued at the then current market prices.

U'pon issuance. the 131.101 escrowed shares were valued by the Company at par value only, or $i.311.
Once conditions for release from escrow have been met, the fair market value of the shares as measured at
1that time, along with sny Galaxy Additional Consideration earned, will be recorded as additional goodwili and
stockholders’ equity. respectively.

The first measurement period for purposes of releasing escrowed shares and paving Galavy Addnicaal
Consideration waus Julv 1, 1997 10 December 31, 1997. [n reviewing Galaxy's pre-1ax income performance. the
Company determined that the earn-out performance criterion was mel. Accordingly, 15218 escroned shares
were accounted for as 1if released und $400.000 of Galaxy Additional Consideration (in the form of 14,901
restricted shares of Company common stock) were accounted for as if paid as of December 31, 1997, The net
effect of this accounting was 10 increase goodwill and stockholders’ equity by approximately S300,000 4s of
December 31 1997. These escrowed shares were released and additional shares were issued to the former
stockholders ol Galavy on February 15, 1998.

K} )



WORLD ACCESS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATENENTS — (Continued)

The acquisition of Galaxy has been accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. Accordingly,
.the results of Galaxy's operations have been included in the accompanying consolidated financisl statements
from July 1, 1997, 1he eflective daté of acquisition as defined in the definitire agreement and plan of merger.
The purchase price was allocated 10 the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estinvated fair
vajues as of the date of acquisition. The excess of purchase price over the fair value of net ussets acquired,
currently estimated at approximately $5.1 million, has been recorded as goodwill and is Leing amoriized over a
15 year period.

Pto Forma Resulis of Operations

On a pro forma, unaudited basis. 35 if the acquisitions of AJT, Wesiec and Sunrise had ccourred s of
January 1. 1995, 101al sales, operating income, net income and diluted net income per coninon share for the
year ended December 31, 1995 would have been approximately $38.100,000. $2.200.000. $1.800.000 and
S0.17. respectively.

On a pro forma, unaudited basis. as if the acquisition of CJS had occurred as of Januany *. 1396, total
sales, operaling income, nel income and net income per diluled common share for ihe svear ended
December 31, 1996 would have been approximately $63,810.000, $10.680.000. £5.:20.0¢0. ard S0.57,
respectively. The resulis of operations for Galaxy during 1996 and the first six momhs of 1997 were not
matenal and 1herefore are not included in the pro forma disclosure.

These unaudited pro forma results have been prepared for comparative purposes onin and ire nol
necessarily indicative of the resulis of operations which would actually have occurred had ke roquisitions
been in effect on 1he dates indicated.

NOTE C: INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market as determtined primanly on o first-in, Srst-out basis,
To address potentially obsoleie and slow moving inventories and related market sdbuation &6 sstoments, the
Company charged 10 operations for the years ended December 31, 1997, 1996 and 1993 sppronimatels
§773,000, $197,000 and 5$162.000, respectively. ’

Inventories consist of the following:

December 3,

1997 19494
Switching systems. frames and related circuit boards ... ... ...... SI3243770 S 6.9P2.886
Electronic COMPONENTS . ... ..outvtr it iinns 4,879.213 2,539,497
Pay telephone Bans ... .....oviin i 1,332,835 193,335
Work in Progress ..o 1,743,268 417,976
Other finished goods ........ ... .o it 1,034.712 282,788

$22,426.918 Si0.657.412
Ee———-] = —— —

The switching sysiems. frames and related circuit beard inventory a1 December 3. 1997 includes
approximately $3.8 million of consigned invemory held 11 Resurgens Communications Group (see
“Nole MUY
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NOTE D: PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and cq.uipmenl is stated al cost, less accumuiated depreciation as computed using the siraig'ht-
line method. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over their remaining estimated lease term. Estimated
lives for other depreciable assets range from three to cight years. Depreciation expense for the years ended
December 31, 1997, 1996 and 1995 was $1,040.000. $829.000 and $690,000, respectively.

Property and ¢quipment consist of the following:

December 31,

1997 1996
Leasehold iMprovements .. ..o.ovvem i, S 915238 S 686,683
Manufacturing assembly and test equipment .. ........... ...l 9.865,060 6,463,996
Office furniture and equipment ........... ..o, 1,739,870 1,328,730
A I T 129,498 84.975
12,649,656 8,564,384
Accumulated depreciation. .. ... o i e {6.945.101) (3.906.723)

4 3 ’
$ 5,704,585 S 2651761

The Company leases various facilities and equipment under operating leases. As of December 31, 1997,
fuiure minimum payments under noncancelable operating leases with initial or remaining 1erms ef more than
one year are approximately: 1998 — $720,000. 1999 — $£43,000. 2000 — $322,000: 2001 — 53C0.000; snd
2002 — 558.000.

Total rental expense under operating leases for the years ended December 31, 1997. 1996 ard 1995 was
approximately $1.732,000, $1,327,000 and S670,000, respectisely. exclusive of property 1axes, ‘nsurance and
sther occupancy costs generally payable by the Company.

NOTE E: TECHNOLOGY LICENSES

In March 1996. the Company entered into 3 memorandum of understanding with Intemational
Communication Technologies, Ine. {(“ICT") and Eagle Telephonics, Inc. (“Eagle) to manufacture, market
and sell a new modutar, digital central office switch developed by Eagle. In July 1996, a long-1¢rm 1echnology
licensing agreement was executed by all three parties. As consideration for this license, the Company paid
Eagle $250,000 in cash and provided it $450.000 of manufaciuring services. The license fees paid Eagle will be
amortized to expense in connection with the first 300,000 lines of phone service provided for within the
switches sold by the Company. i.c. approximately $2.50 per line. In addition to the up-front consideration. the
Company agreed 1o pay ICT certain royaliies based on future sales of the switch by the Company. During
1997. the Company expensed license fees and royalties of approximately 5200,000 in connection with lines
sold during the year. In connection with this license and 1he up-from consideration paid, the Company
received 1.2 million rest-icted shares of Eagle common stock. The fair value of these shares was not materal
as of December 31, 1997.

In December 1996, the Company executed a technology licensing agreement with TCSI1 Corporation
(“"TCS1”) that gramis the Company the perpetua) rights 1o incorporate TCSI's spread spectrum Code
Division Muhiple Access (“CDMA™) based wireless technology into the Company’s products sold through-
out the world. Under tie 1erms of the agreement, the Company also has the rights 10 use ihe technology
corered by seven TCSI patents, all of which address digital data signals and wireless communication systems.
As 101al consideration for this license, TCSI was paid $20.000 in cash and 25000 shares of resiricted
Company common stock. These shares had an initial fair value of approximately $150,000. In addition to the
25.000 shares noted above. TCS1 was issued 25,000 shares of resiricied common stock. These shares were
immediately placed into escrow and will be released 10 TCSI upon the earlier of the first commercial use of
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the technology by the Company or the expiration of the two year period from the date the License wus
executed. -As of December 31, 1997, no escrowed shares had been releaced 10 TCS1.

NOTE F: GOODWILL

Goodwill from acquisitions. representing the excess of purchase price paid over the volue of net assets
acquired, is as follows:
December ),

1997 199g

o 1 I $12,4858.239 § -
AT o i e 11.557917  6.403.187
o) 2 R 5.089.265 —
Westec......... b e e e e 2 34.660 1.329.035
SUNFISE .. ovoretrine vt iraet iy e 2284500 2.159.500
Other.............. e e e e e 384900 334902
34,166,483  10.276.624

Accumulated amortiZation ...l {2.206.282) __ (730.484)

$31.660.201 S 9.526.130

Goodwill is being amortized on a siraight-line basis over a 15 year period. The Company reviews the net
carrving value of goodwill on a regular basis. and if deemed necessary. charges are recorded against current
operations for any impairment in the value of these assets. No significant impairment charges have been
recorded 10 date. Goodwill is removed from 1he books when fully amortized.

NOTE G: DEBT

Summary

The Company had ro debt outstanding a5 of December 31, 1996. Debt as of December 11, 1997 consists
of the following:

December 11,
7

Convertible subordinated notes. . ...... ... ... $115,000.000
Capital lease obligations and otherdebt ............. ... ... . ............ 345.723
Total debl oo .o e 115,345,723
Amountdue withinone year .......... ... .o A81.739)
Long—rermdebt ... . ... 5115.263.984
———— "

Interest paid for the years ended Dccember 31, 1997, 1996 and 1995 was $57,000, $352.000 and
$307.000, respectively.

Comertible Subordinated Notes

On QOctober 1, 1997, the Company sold $100.0 nillion in aggregate principal amouni of convertible
subordinated noles (the “Notes”} under Rule 144A of the Securities Act of 1933. The Notes bear interest ar
the rate of 4.5% per annum, arc converlible into Company common stock t un initial price of $37.03 per share
and mature on October 1. 2002. Interest on the Notes is payable on April | and October 1 of each jear,
commencing on April {, 1998. The Noiles are general unsecured obligations of the Company and are
subordinate in right of payment to alt existing and senior indebledness. The Company receined $97.0 million
from the sale of the Notes, afier the application of the initial purchasers’ discount fees of $3.0 milljon,
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1n addition 10 the Notes sold on October 1. 1997, the Company granted the initial purchasers an option 1o
purchase up 10 an additional $§5.0 million in Notes 10 cover over-allotments. On October 28, 1997, the initisl
purchasers exercised the over-allotment optioh in full and the Company received ad sdditional $14.320.000,
after the application of the initial purchasers” discount fees of $4%0,000.

The discount fees und legal, accounting. printing and other expenses (the "Debt issuunce co's”) related
10 the Notes offering amounted to approximately $4.0 million, .ind .re being amorntized 10 expense over the
five year term of the Notes. During 1997, the Comnpany recognized appronimately $200,000 of debt issuance
cost amortization related to the Notes. Debt issuance costs of approvimuately §3.8 million are included in
Other assets on the Company’'s December 31, 1997 balance sheet.

Bank Debt

In December 1996, the Company’s agreement with a large European bank was umended 10 incresse its
revolving line of credit 10 10 million. Borrowings under the line are secured by a first lien on substanually all
the asseis of the Company. The bank agreement. which expires in March 2001, centains standard lending
covenamts including financial ratios. restrictions on dividends and limitations on additionat debt and the
disposition of Company assets. Interest is paid at the rate of prime plus 1'+% or LIBOR plus 2':%. at the
option of the Cemipany.

Prior to 1996. :he Company's principal source of deb1 financing since May 1992 has been with this
Eurcpean bank. In connection with operating losses experienced by the Company. restructuring programs
implemenied by the Company and violations of financial covenants established by the bank. the bank
agreement was amended several limes during 1992 through 1993 1o defer prircipal pavaents and resiructure
financial covensa's. In consideration for the original credit facility and 1he significant concessians provided
during 1his pericd, the bank received warranis to purchase 360.000 <h.res of the Comipany’s comuien s1ock 3t
its then current mark#1 price of $1.25 per share.

In July 1995 ke Company received a new 52 million revalving line of credit from 1he btunk. Ia
consideration for the line of credit and 3 reduced interest rate, he Company psid the bank 1 3:0.000
origination fee and issued the bank warrants 10 purchase 100.000 shares of the Company’s common siock ot its
then current market price of $3.82 per share on or prior to October 31, 1999, In October 1993, the bark paid
the Company $832.0£0 o exercise all 460,000 warrants {see "Note |”).

In Qctober 1996. in connection with a secondary public equity utfering completed by 1he Compans. the
Company paid the bank $3.9 million to pay off the cuistanding principal balunce on its term loan,

NOTE H: STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

During September and October 1996, 3.487.500 shares of Conpany common stock were sold in a
secondary public offering at a price of $8.00 per share. The Company received $26.16.230 from this offering.
net of underwriting discounts. The Company incurred additional expenses of approsimately $825.000 in
connection with this offering.

During June and July 199%. 1.168.000 restricted shares of the Company’s commen stock were sold in a
private placement for a gross consideration of §2.920.000. of itv then current market prace of 87 20 per chore
Participants in the oVering also received warrants 1o purchase o total of 11658000 of sdditionad sares of
restricied common siock at $3.50 per share on or prior 10 June 30, 2000. Approvimately $273.000 of the
offering was purchased by the directors and management of the Company. In October 1995, ctockholders paid
the Company approsimustely $4.1 million 10 exercise all warrants issued 4s 4 resuly of the pinate eifering (see
*Nove 1),
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In connection with the Company’s initisl public offering in August 1991, all of the existing holders of the
Company's common stock placed in cscrow an aggregate of 672,419 shares of the Company’s common stock.
As of August 12, 1996, the termination date of the escrow agreement, the conditions for release of the shares
had not been met. Accordingly, the 672,419 escrowed shares of Company common siock were returned 10 the
Company and became authorized but unissued shares.

NOTE I: STOCK WARRANTS AND OPTIONS
Stock Warrants

In connection with various financial transactions completed by the Company during 1992 1o 1995, equiny
investors (see “Note H™), debtors (see “Note G”) and certain consultants were issued warrants 1o purchase
shares of the Company's common stock in the future. All of these sarrants had excreise prices thay were se1
or above the then current market price of the Company’s commen stock at the respective dates of gramt,

In October 1995, the Company raised approximately $6.3 million of nzw capital through the enercise of
previously issued warranis and non-qualified options to purchase 2.433,833 sharcs of the Company’s common
stock. Of the 6.5 million raised, approximately §1.6 million was invesied by the directors. management and
the principal lender of the Company. In exercising their warrants or options. investors had the option of pasing
cash or =xecuting an 8% interest bearing note payable 10 the Company. Approximately $2.4 million of the to1al
proceeds was paid in cash and §4.1 miilion through notes. The notes were paid in full by Murch 29, 1996,

As of December 31, 1997, there were rno warranis outstanding 1o purchase Company comuton steck
except for the Director warzant plans discussed below.

Director Warrant Plans

In December 1994, in an effont to auract and retain experienced executives 12 sene 35 cutside directors
for the Company, the Company’'s Board of Direciors adopted an Ouiside Directors’ Warraar Plan (the
-lPInnOI).

In December 1994, three new outside directors of the Company were awarded a :otal of 120.000
warrants. Each director received 1 20.000 warramis and each warrant entitles the director to purchase one share
of the Company’s common stock on or prior to December 15, 1999 per the following terms:

Exerclse
Wamants Pelce Yesting
B0000 ... .ttt e e 51.50 December 135, 1993
000 . ...t e e e 225 December 15, 1995
50000........ b e e na et e e e e, 1.00 December 15, 1996

Concurrent with the sbove initial grant, & fourth outside director of the Company was awarded 126.000
warrants. The terms of this grant were exacily 83 those described above except the number of warrants at 1he
$1.50 exercise price was sct at 26.000 instead of 50,000.

During 1997. outside dircctors paid the Company approximately $900,000 10 exercise 348,660 warranits.
As of December 31, 1997, 217.340 warranis are excrcisable by the Company’s ouiside directors under the
Plan.
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In December 1994, the Company's Board of Directors awarded Steven A. Odom. who jained the Bourd
in Ociober 1994 snd became Chairman in November 1994, an initial grant of 340,000 warrants undes the
Plan. Each warrant entitles Mr. Odom to purchase one share of the Company’s commen stock on of prier to
December 15, 1999 per the following terms:

Exercise
Watranis Price Mevting
JR0000 ... . e e e e, S1.50 December 13, 199%
150000 .................................................. 338 December 15, 1995
130000 . ... e e 4.00 December 15, 1996

In August 1997, Mr. Odom paid the Company 5223.000 10 exercise 130.000 warranis at S1 30, As of
December 31, 1997, 300.000 warranis are exercisable by Mr. Odom under 1he Plan.

In December 1994, the Board also adopied the Directors Warrant Incentive Plan, pursuant to which ihe
Board. beginning in 1997. may grant 1o each director on an annual basis warranis to purchase up to 0.060
hzres of Company common siock at an exercise price per share equal 10 no less than $10% of 1he fait marker
value of the common stock at the date of grant. Warrants may only be issued under this plan if the Compamy's
cemmon stock has appreciuated by a compounded annual average rate of in excess of 3% for the four vears
preceding the year of grant. In March 1997, the four cutside directors of the Company were exch pranted
warrants 1o purchase £0.000 shares of Company common stock 31 $9.21 per share, These warranis becare
fullv vesied on December 31, 1997,

The »2sting of al} warranis awarded pursuant 10 the plans above will be sublect 10 the direcior 10 whom
such wasrants have been granted atiending at least 7°% of the meetings of the Board of Directors for “he vear
in which «.:ch warrants are scheduled 10 vest. Notwithstanding this limitation. 1the warrarts 10 be awarded
pursuant 1o the plans will beconte immediately exercisable (i) if the Company is 10 be consalidated with or
acquired by another eatity in a merger, (i} upon the sale of substantially ali of 1the Corpany’s assets or the
sale of a1 least 90% of 1he outstanding common stock of the Comipany to a third party. (11) upon 1he merger or
consolidation of the Company with or into any other corporation or the merger or consolidation of any
corporation with or into the Company (in which consolidation or merger the sharehelders of the Company
receive distributions of cash or securities as a result thereof), or (iv) upon the liguidation or disselution of 1he
Company.

Stock Option Plans

In 1991, the Company's stockholders adopted the 1991 Stock Option Plan (the 1991 Pian”). The 199]
Plan, as amended. provided for the granting of up to 3,500,000 options. As of December 31, 1997, na options
were available for future grant under the 1991 Plan.

In December 1997, the Company's Board of Directors authorized the adoption of the 1998 Incentive
Cempensation Plan (the 1998 Plan™). The 1998 Plan, which is subject 1o shareholder appros al, provides for
the granting of up 1o 3,000,000 options. As of December 31. 1997 there were 4,023,000 options as ailable for
future grant under the 1998 Plan.

These plans sltow the Beard of Directors to grant non-qualified and incentive stock vpnons 10 pun e
the Company’s common slock il an exercise price not less than fair market value us of the grani dute. Oplions
issued under these plans typicaliy vest over a four year peried. Oplions awarded under the 1991 Plan and the
1998 Plan are subject 1o the same vesting acceleration provisions described above under the Director warrant
plans.
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The following tible summarizes the activity relating 10 both plans:

", . Numler \srtape

‘ of QOpilons Price
Balance at January 1, 1995 ..o e 765,857 S1.20
OPLONS GIANED ..ottt e e et et e e e 1,246,327 s.&2
Options exercised. ... ..ot e e e (167.400) .86
Options lapsed orcanceled . ...l (162.955) 193
Balance at December 30, 1995 . ... 1.681.829 137
OPUONS SFANTEd ..o e e enm e e 831269 803
OPLions EXEICISEd. ... v o en i e i e {170.030) 1.47
Options lapsed or canceled . ........oooeivniinn, e e (67.940) 5.38
Balance at December 3. 1996 ... .. ... ... ..., e et 2327118 6.08
Oprions REANIEd .. ..o . it 1.953.500 1€.93
Options exereised. . ... ..o 1647.700) 597
Options lapsed or canceled....... e e e (80,4:0) 723
Balance at December 3}, 1997 ... 1554988 1214
Exercisable at December 31, 1997 ..o 1,101,500 764

The options outsianding at December 31, 1997 have been segregated into four price ranges for additional
disclosure as follows:
Options Welghied-Aserage  Weiphted- dvvraze

Range of Ouigiandin emainin Exeicive
Excrcize Prices at 12/31/9 Coniractusl Life Prices
O e T 2 I Teierenan 78.863 1.9 $ 158

30897 e e 414,500 2.7 iy

100-9.75 . oo, 1,624,125 3.7 301

19.00-25 35 . 0 e 1,437.000 5.0 19.73

In December 1995, the Company offered a voluntary salary reduction program for 1996 that resuited in
the grant of 424,627 non-qualified stock options at the then current market price of $7.00 per share. Salaried
employees voluntarily agreed to reduce their salaries by $§849.254, i.e. S2 in exchange for each stock opiion
granted. The options vested based upon the attainment of specific financial and operaticnal objeciives during
the vear. As of December 31. 1996, these options had become fully vested.

In December 1996, the Company offered a similar voluntary salary reduction program for 1997 \hu
resulted in the grant of 413.019 non-qualified options at the then current market price of $8.00 per share.
Salaried employees voluntarily agreed to reduce their salaries by $826,038, i.e. $2 in exchange of each siock
option granted. The options vesied based upon the Company achieving key operational objectives during 1he
year including 25% internal sales growth, improved jnventory tumover and specific enhancements 1o the
Company's qualily and information sysiems designed to facilitate growth. As of December 31, 1997, these
options had become fully vested.

An additional element of the 1996 and 1997 voluntary salary reduction programs provided for the
polential repayment of salasies if cerfain pre-1ax income amounis are realized by the Company. Full
repayment was earned and recorded 10 expense in 1996 and a 30% panial repay ment was carned and recorded
10 expense in 1997,

In August 1995, the Company granted its new President and Chiefl Operating Officer 300,000 options
§3.78 per share, the market price of the Company's common stock on the date his offer of employ ment was
sccepled. These options vest 257h on each of the first four anniversaries from the initial daie of emplos ment.
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In December 1995, the Company granted its Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and its Vice
President and Chicl Financial Officer 200,000 and 0,000 options, respectively, at the then market price of
$7.00 per share, The 200,000 options resied 0% on 'lh.e first two anniversaries from the date of grant. The
30.000 options vested 25% immediately and the remaining 25% on each of the next three anniversaries from
the date of grani.

In December 1997, the Company made an initial grant of 975,000 options under the 1998 Plan 10 its
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (300.000 options). Presidemt and Chiel Operating Officer (300,000
options). Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (200,000 options) and Executive Vice
President of Business Development (25,000 options). These options. which are subject 10 stockholder
approval. vest 25% on each of the first four anniversaries from the date of grant and are excrcisable at $19.00
per share, the market price at the date of ]ranl._The date the stockholders approve the 1998 Plan will become
1he measurement date for purposes of computing compensation expense, if any. If the stock price as of the
measurement date exceeds $19.00. then the tolal compensation impact will be the difference between stock
srice at the measurement date and $19.00. The Company will record that expense ratably over a peric 3 of four
VEIFS,

Pro Forma Results of Operations

The Company has elected to follow APB Opinion No. 25, *Accounting for Stock Issued 10 Employees.”
and relsted Interpreiations in accounting for its employee stock options. Therefore, no compensation cost has
Seen recegnized related 1o steck options. If the company had elected 10 account for its stock options under the
fair salue methed of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation™. the Company’s nel
income ind net income per comymon share would have been reduced 10 the pro forma amounts indicated
telow:

1997 1996 1994

Net [necome

AS TEPORIEd . o oottt $13.134.103 $6,778.542 $1.172.143

Proforma .. ... oot 11.380.000  6.100,000 250.000
Basic EPS

Asreported . .. ... e 0.76 0.32 01s

Proforma ...t e 0.66 0.47 0.]2
Dilvied EPS

ASTepOrted . . ... i 0.70 0.16 0.12

Proforma ... e e 0.61 042 0.1}

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded
options that have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models require
the input of highly subjecti-e assumptions, including the expected stock price volatility. Since the Company’s
employee stock options have characteristics significantly different from those of traded options and changes in
the subjective input assumptions can maierially affect the fair value estimate, the existing models. in
:management’s opinion, do not necessarnily provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of the Company's
employee stock options.
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The fair value of each option has been estimated on the date of grant using a Black-Scholes opiion-
pricing medel with the following weighted average assumptions wsed for grants in 1997, 1996 and 1993,

respectively:
1907 joan  goes
Dividend Yield ....... b e e - nfa n/a n/a
Expected volatilily ... o 10 20
RiCK-TEE MIETEST T . o vt e e et e e e e 35 %1 60
Expected life of stock options (inyears) ....................... ... . 435 10 10

NOTE 3: RETIREMENT SAVINGS PLAN

The Company has a retirement savings 401 (k) plan that covers substantially all emplosees. The plan
provides for the employees to volumtarily contribute a portion of their compensation on a tax deferred basis and
allows for the Company 10 make discretionary maiching contributions as determined by the Board of
Directors. For the vears ended December 31. 1997, 1996 and 1995, the Company contnbuted approvimatels
$109.000, $42.000 and 519,000, respectively. in the form of Company common steck to the Plan. In 1997,
Company contsibutions were based on 3 £0% maich 10 employee contributions. up 10 ihe first sin percemt

contributed.

NOTE K: INCOME TAXES

The Company uses the asset and liability appreach for financial accounting . ~d reporiing for income
taxes. Certain expenses are reported for financial accounting purposes in diferent periads than for incoeme i
purposes. These temporary differences arise primarily from depreciation, bad debt resernves. imverton
valuation and various reserves. ’

The provision for income 1axes for the years ended December 31, 1997 and 1996 was compulted in
secordance with SFAS No. 109. "Accounting for Income Taxes™ and consists of the following:

Year Ended December 1.

1997 1994
Current income 1axes
Federa) ..ottt e e . SA362.:00 51.009.003
7T 613.000 189.188

5.975.500  1.198.191

Deferred income 1axes

Federml ... e e 1,400,500 (4054235)
7T P 160.000 {11.697)
1.560.300 (441120

Total income laxes..... . ... e e . 87536000 S 143069
= —_—

As of December 31, 1997, the Company has capital loss carnyforvards of approvimatels §1 2 muliion
<\piring in 1998,

As 2 result of the exercises of non-qualified stock options and warrants by the Company’s directors and
employees during 1997, the Company huas realized a federal income 1ax benefit of approximately §6.7 mllion.
This tax benefit has been accounied for as a decrease in current income 1axes payable and an increase in
capital in excess of par value.
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The provision for income 1axes differs from the amount computed by applying the statutory federal
income tax rate 10 income before income 1axes. The sources and 1hx effects of the differences are as follows:

Vear Ended December 3,

1997 199¢
Federal tax atl statulory rate ....... e eraa §7,210,000 35.0% $2.558,028 14.0%
Effect of:
State fax, net of federal benefit .................. 825000 40 373041 5.0
Nondeductible purchase adjustments. ............. 575000 28 190,000 25
Reduction in valuation allowance, utilization of net
operating loss carmyforwards and reduction of
TESEIVES .. .ovvurenn- errreraaras Mreas e, (1,074.000) (5.3) (2.376,000) (31.6)
INCOME 13X EXPENBE . ... ovvvnrenronrr o onannns $7.336.000 365% S 745069 _9.9%

Significant compaaenis of the Company’s deferred income tax asseis and liabilities are a- follows:
December 31,

1997 1996
Deferred 1ax assets
Accrued liabilities ........... ... e § 978,594 § 793,509
Net operating loss carnvlomards ...l —  1,519.658
Capital loss carnfornards . ...t e 491,07t 190,428
(0 11171 J AR 155,00, 314,636

1.926.666  3.108.54)
Deferred tax liabilities

Depreciation/amortizalion . .........oo i (496,147)  (306,481)
(1 7 (182,367) —
Valalion AOWANCE . . .ot i (492,071) (480.418)
Net deferred 12X @85€18 ... oo o ci it i e S 755,081 525221.632

The valuation allowance relates 1o capital losses whose use is limited 10 capital gains the Compzny would
record. These losses will expire during 1998, and currenily there are no foresceable events which would allow

for the utilization of the losses.

NOTE L: SPECIAL CHARGES

In the second quarter of 1995, the Company recorded a one-time special charge of $980,000 for the
following items:

Write-down of test equipment and related tooling ......... ... ... .. ...l $675,000
Consolidation of repair OPerations. ... ..« oo vvrer it it i 95.000
Retirement benefits and relocation costis ..... ... .. 150,000
L0 T A 60,000

5980,000

As 3 result of the significant decline in analog circuil board repair revenues expericnced by the Company
in recent years, the shift in sirategic focus 10 new digital repair services and programs offered by the Company
in 1995, the acquisition of AIT and other market considerations, the Company elecied 10 consolidate certain
operations and significanily write-down the net book value of certain asseis related 1o repair operations, These
assets primarly represent test equipment, tooling, dies and diagnostic programs for the repair of analog
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telecommunications equipment, Al of these asseis were capitalized in 1958 1o 1990 m connectivn with
acquisitions muade by the Company.

NOTE M: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In October 1997, John D. Phillips, a direcior of 1the Company. entered into o series of agreements
whereby, among other things. he became the new Chairman and Chiel Executive Otficer of Chern
Communications Incorporated (d/b/u Resurgens Communications Group) ("Resurgens™). a facilines-based
provider of international network access commonly referred to as a carriers’ carner. Resurgens was shorth
thereafier placed into bunkruptcy under Chapter 11 of the United Siates Bankrupicy Code. WorldCom. Ine
{*WorldCom™"). a major cusiomer and vendor of Resurgens. has subsequently agreed 10 provide Recurgens up
to 528 million in financing in the form of a debtor in possession facility and oiher credits.

During the fourth quarter of 1997, the Company shipped switching equipment to Resurgens. The cost of
this equipment was approximately §3.8 million. On February 12, 1998. the Company executed . lener of
intent 10 acquire Resurgens. The equipment shipped 10 Resurgens is included in the Company's imenton
December 31, 1997 (see "Nowe C™). )

The Resurgens acquisition is subject 19. among other things. the satisfaciory completion by the Ceapany
of is due diligence investigation of Resurgens. the preparztion and execution of J definitine merger agreemen.
the receipt of the requisite corperate and regulatory approvals and the confirmation of Resurgens’ Plan of
Reorganization.

NOTE N: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
ATI Acquisition

On December 24, 1997, the Company eniered inta aa dgreemient 1o 2oquire Advanced TedhCom. 1o
“ATI"). a Wilmingion. ¥iassachuseiis based designer and manufacturer of digital microw ave aad nilime-
terwave radio svstems for short and long haul voice. data snd/or video applications. Oa Jaruan 29, 1998, ihe
irantaction was completed in its final fenm whereby ATI was nterged with and into CIS, 4 . hellv-ourned
subsidiary of the Company (the "ATI Merger™). In connection with the ATl Merger. the sicchholders of ATI
received approximately 5300.000 in cash and 418,053 restricied shares of the Company’s common stock.
These shares had an initial fair value of approximately $8.0 million.

In addition 10 the 318,054 shures noted above, the stockholders of AT were issuved 209.050 resiricted
shares of the Company’s common siock. These shares were immediately placed into escrow and will be
released to the stockholders of AT! contingent upon the realization of predefined lesels of pre-1ax net income
from ATI's operations during calendar years 1998 and 1599,

In December 1997. the Company loaned ATI approximaseiy $4.5 mullion. The note receis able fron AT
is included in Other asseis on the Company’s balance sheel at December 31, 1997.
NACT Acquisition

In the fourth quarner of 1997, the Company tegun a three phase acquisiion of NACT. NACT. based in
Provo Utah. is a leading single-source provider of advanced telecommunications switching plaforms with
integrated telephony software applications and neiveork 1elemanigemem capabilities

During November and December 1997, 1the Company purchased 3533000 shares of NACT comnen
stock in the open market for approximately $5.0 million {see *'Noe A7)

On December 31, 1997, the Company entered into a s1ock purchase agreement with GST apd GST USA
to acquire 5,113,712 shares of NACT conmamon siock owned by GST USA. representing approvimately 63 of
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the vutstanding shisres of NACT (the " Acquisition”). On February 17, 1998, the Acquisition was completed
with GST USA receiving $59.7 miltion in cash and 1,429,907 restricied shares of the Company’s commeon
stock. These shures had an initial fair value of approzimately $23.0 million.

On February 23. 1998 the Company entered into 3 merger agreement with NACT purruant 1o which the
Company agreed 10 ucquire all of the shares of NACT common siock not already owned by the Company or
GST USA. Pursuant to the ierms of the merger agreement, ¢ach share of NACT common stock will be
converted into shares of Company common stock having a value of $17.40 per share based on 1he average of
the daily closing price of Company commen steck on the Nasdaq Nationad Market for a pre-defined period
prier 1o the closing (the “Closing Price™). provided that if the Closing Price is more than $25.52. then each
share of NACT common stock will be converted into 0.6857 shares of Company common stock. If the Closing
Price is less thun $20.88, then the Company may elect 10 terminate the agreemen:. The merger is subject to,
among other things. the approval of the NACT stockholders and the satisfaction of certain other customary
conditions.

On August 24, 1996, Aerotel, Lid. and Aerotel US.A. Inc. (collectively. "Acrotel”) commenced an
actien against NACT and a customer of NACT in the United States District Court. Southern District of New
York. alleging that telephone systems manufaciured and sold by NACT incorporating prepaid debit card
features infringe upon Aerotel’s patent which wag issucd in November 1987 (the "aAerotel Paten1”). Aerotel
sought injunciive relief. damages in an unspecified amount. damages of up to three tintes damuges fcund for
willful infringement of the Aerotel Patent and an arder requiring NACT 1o publish a written apclogy 1o
Acrotel. NACT filed an answer and Counterclaim in which it denied infringement of the Acrctel Patem and
sought ;udgement thut the Aerotel patent is invalid and unenforceable and that Aerotel has misused its patent
in violatien of antitrust luws. NACT has denied that it has commined defamation. unfair ~ompetiion and
1ortious interference with prospective business relations. In August 1997, Aerotel amended 1is complaint 1o
include as defendunts GST. GST USA, and o former executive officers of NACT. The anmiended pleadings
seek in excess of $18.7 million in damages and allege that GST and GST L'SA have infringed tFe Aerotel
patent. 2ided and abetted infringement by others. including NACT. and participated in. and aided and aketted
slleged tonious conduct by MACT. GST, GST USA and the 1wo former executive oficers of NACT have
served answers denying all material allegavions and intend 1o defend vigorously.

Under the terms of the Company’s stock purchase agreement with GST, the Company and GST have
agreed 10 share evenly 1he costs of any judgement against NACT as a result of the Aerotel litigation, including
NACT's legal fees. The Company believes that NACT has valid defentes to the Aeroiel claims. An
unfavorable decision in this sction could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial positian.

Resurgens Pending Acquisition

On Februan 12, 1998, the Company executed a letter of intent to acquire Resurgens (see “Note M7},

Pro Forma Results of Operations

On 2 pro forma, unaudited basis, as il the acquisitions of ATI and NACT had occurred as of January I,
1996. 101al sales, operating income, netincome (loss) and diluted rei income (loss) per commen share for the
years ended December 31. 1997 and 1996 would have been approximately 5136.520.000 and $80.360.000:
S1).608.000 and $13.000: 56.919.000 and $(629.000): und $0.37 und ${D.04}. respectineh

These unaudited pro forma results have been prepared for comparative purposes only and are not
necessarily indicative of the results of operations which would actually have occurred had the acquititions
been in effect on the date indicated,
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PART 1. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

tem 1. Financial Statements

World Access, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Shoets

ASSETS
Current Assels
Cash and equivalenis
Marketeble securilies
Accounis receivable
Notes receivable
Inventories
Other curreni asseis
Total Current Asseis
Property and equipment
Investment in affiliate
Goodwill
iher asseis

Tolal Assels

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Short-lerm cebt
Accouris payable
Accrued payroll and tene'is
Purchase price payable
Other accrued linbilltias
Total Currant Liabilitiss
Leng-term debt
Noncurrent ligbilities
Minority inlerests
Total Liabilit'es

Stockhoicers’ Equity
Commaon stock
Capital in excess of par vaive
Retained sarnings {(deficil)
Toial Stockholders’ Equity

Total Limbilities and Stockholders’ Equity

March 31
1968
{Unaudited)

S 63,278,252

December 31
1987

S 118,085,045

3,500,000
39,883,071 20,263,971
8,908,270 2,050,000
28,340,209 22,428,918
7,153,447 8,873,723
148,083,249 171,879,857
13,940,900 5,704,585
- 5,002,000
71,151.856 31,660,201
12,185,155 11,236,298
$ 248,121,160 $ 225282741
S 1,683,877 5 81,739
17,562,283 9,339,588
2,338,117 2.589,461
3,700,000
8,395,260 2,219,237
26,209,547 17,930,025
115,527,707 115,283,984
1,888,028 333,802

11,503,650 -
157,036,930 133,527.811
217,059 193,062
130,289,184 84,182,478
— (41,402,013} 7,399,380
89,104,230 91,754.930

5 __246,121,160

] 225282 741

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thase consolidated financial statements.
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World Access, Inc. and Subsl*lu

Consolidated Statements of Operations

(Unaudited)

Sates of products
Servica ravanues

Total Sales
Cost of products soid
Cost of services

Total Cost of Sales

Gross Profit
Engineering and development
Selling, general and administrative
Amortization of goodwill
In-process research and development
Speciel charges

Operating Income (Loss)

Inferest and ciher income
Interest expensa

Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes and Minorily Interests
income taxes

Incoma (Loss) Before Minority Interests
Minority interests in eamings of subsidiary

Net Income (Loss)
Net Income (Loss) Per Common Share

Basic
Diluted

Weighted Average Shares Outstanding
Basic
Diluted

Thras Months Ended March 34

1998 1997
S 28,228,356 S 15,470,050
7,502,089 4,781,374
35,731,045 20,251,424
16,772,449 9,969,627
7,427,684 4,083,481
24,200,133 14,053,108
11,530,912 6,198,316
788,184 316,410
3,255,854 1,917,563
863,997 284,131
50,000,000 —
3,240,000 —
(46,617.123) 3.680,212
1,269,784 367,186
(1.514.913) (28,930)
(46,862,752) 4,018,468
1,255,000 1,406,000
{48,117,752) 2,612,468
683,651 —

§ __[48801403) . S 2,612,468

S 2.52 s
S s

o

19,342,627 16,399 548
—15.322,627. — 17,320,

The accompanying notes are an inlegral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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World Access, Inc. and Bul:nldlﬁu

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity

Balance at January 1, 1998

Net loss

tssuance of 1.429,907 shares for NACT
acquisition

1ssuance of stock options for NACT acquisiton

issuance of 633,982 shares for ATI
acguisition

lssuance of 334,252 shares for stock
options and warrants

Tax benefit from exercises of stock
options and warranis

Issuance of 1,511 shares for matching
contribution to 401K plan

Balance at March 31, 1898

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

(Unaudited)

Capital in Retalned
Commeon Excess of Earnings
Stock Par Value {Deflcit) Total
S 193062 § 84,162,478 § 7.399.390 5 91,754,930
(48,301,403)  (48,801,403)
14,289 26.887,953 26,882,252
8,359,737 8,359,737
6,340 8,508,200 6,514,540
3,343 1,691,516 1.694,859
2,662,400 2.662,400
15 36,900 36,915

$__217,059 S ___130289.184 S (31,402 013) S _89,104,230
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WOaAccon. inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

{(Unaudited)

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash from

(used by) operating aclivities:
Depreciation and amortization
Income tax benefit from stock warrants and options
Special charges
Minority interests in earnings of subsidiary
Provision for inventory ressrves
Stock contributad to employee banefil pian

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of eflects

from businesses acquired:
Accounis receivable
Notes receivable
inventories
Accounts payable
Other assets and liabilities

Net Cash From (Used By) Operaling Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Acguisiticns of businesses

Loan repayments by affiliate
Expendituras for preperty and eguipment

Net Cash Used 3y [nvesting Activities

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Short-term debt borrowings

Proceeds from axarcise of stock warrants and cptions
Long-term cebt repaymeants

{ssuance of long-lerm cebl for capital lease

Net Cash From Financing Activilies

Dacrease in Cash and Equivalents
Cash and Equivalents st Beginning of Period

Cash and Equivalents at End of Period

Supplemental Schedule of Noncash Financing and
Invesling Activitias:

Issusnce of common stock for businesses acquired

!ssuance of stock options for businesses acquired

Conversion of nole receivable to invesimant in ATI

Three Months Ended March 31

1988

$ {48.801,403)

1,545,009
2.662,400
55,892,766
683,851
77.500
38,915

(9.993,053)
(1,082,048)
(3,101,070)
3,608,024
423,374

—

2,038,167

(57.408,573)

(1.918,355)
_(99,325.928)

1,771,651
1,694,859
(€68,542)

2,499,988

{54,788,793)

118,085,045

5 83278252

S 33.396,792

8,359,737
4.484,54

s

1997

2,812,468

503,430

60,000
13,201

(3.554,300)

{3.521.014)
2,087,347

462,255

_(1,336,604)

{4.099.852)
582,500

(725,793)
{4.243,145)

4,024,Cc00
160,548

291,500

—_———

4,475,048

{1.103,701)

22,480,082

s_21 378,381

]

2,088,118

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financia! statements.

4



World Access, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31,1998

NOTE L. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements wnelude the accounts of the Company and its
subsidiary companies, all of which are wholly-owned except for 67.3% ownership i1n NACT Telecommunications,
Ine. ("NACT™). Minority interests represent the runority stockholders propornonate shate of NACT's equity.
These financial siatements have been prepared in accordance with the instuctions to Form 10-Q and do not include
all the information and foomotes required by generally accepted accounting principles for complete financial
staternents. In the opinion of management, all adjustments (consisting of normal recusting accruals) considered
necessary for a fair presentation of the results of the interim periods covered have been included. For furtber
information, refer to the audited consolidated firancial statements and footnotes included in the Company’s Anoual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1997

The pr tion of financial sutements in conformity with generally accepred accountng prisciples requures
management o make estimaies and assurmptions that affect the reperted amounts of asseis and J.abihities and disclosure
of contingent asscts and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of sales and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

The results of operations for the three mon'hs ended March 31, 1998 2ze rot recessanly izdicative of the results
expected for the full year. Ceruin reclassificacons have been made 10 the pnor penod's fizancial wmiommanoa to
conform with the presentavions used in 1998.

NOTE 1. ACQUISITIONS

ATI Acquisition

On December 24, 1997, the Company entered wnlo an greement 0 2cguue Advanced TechCom, Irnc.
(“ATI"), a Wilmington, Massachusctts based Cesigner and manufacrurer of di‘?ml micronwave and mllimeterwave
radio systems for shom and long baul voice, daw and/or video applicatons. Om January 29, 1998, the transacrion was
completed in its final form whereby ATI was merged with and into Cellular Infrasorucrwe Supply, Inc. ("CIS™), a
wtro’ﬁy-oumd subsidiary of the Company (the “AT] Merger™). In connecticn with the ATT Merger, e stockholders of
ATI received approximately $200,000 in cash a=d 424,932 resriczed shares of the Company's comrmon siock. These
shares had an initia} fair value of approximately $6.5 million.

In addition 1o the 424,932 shaies noted above, the stockholders of AT] were issued 209,050 resmicicd shares
of the Company’s common stock. These shases were Mnedjatehy placed into escrow and will be released to the
stockholders of ATI contingent ;gu the realization of precefined levels of pre-tax income from ATI's operatons
during calendar years 1998 and 1999.

Upon issuante, the 209,050 escrowed shares were valued by the Company at par value only, or 52,091, Asit
becomes probable that the conditions for release from escrow will be met, the fair market value of the shases as
measured at that time will be recorded as additional goodwill and stockbolders® equity, respectively.

The acquisition of ATI has been accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. Accordingly, the
results of ATT's operations have been included in the accompanying consolidated finaocis! siatements from February 1,
1998. The purchase price was allocated (o et assets acquired and 10 aﬁprnxirmlcly $5.4 mullion of purchased in-
process research and !:'elopmm (R&D). Puchated in-process R&D, which consists of the value of ATI products in
the development suage that are not considered o bave reached techoological feasibility, was expensed in the first
quarter of 1998 in accordance with applicable accounting rules. The excess of purchase price oser the fair value of net
assets acquircd and purchased in-process R&D, currently estimated at approximately 53.0 mullion, has been recorded as
goodwill and is being amortized over a |5 year period.



In the fourth quaner of 1997, the Company began a three phase acquisinen of NACT. a Prove Utah based
single-source provider of advanced telecommunications swirching plaforms with ntegrated telephony software
apﬁ‘iﬂﬁom and netwerk ielemanagement capabiliries.

NACT Acquisition

Dunng November and December 1997, the Company pwchased 355,000 sharés of NACT common stock in
the open market fos approximately $5.0 million.

On December 31, 1997, the Company entered o a2 stock purchise agreememt with GST
Telecommunications, Inc. ("GST") and GST USA, Inc. ("GST USA™) to acquire 5,111,712 sh 5:. of NACT common
stock owned by GST USA, represenning approximately 63°% of the outstanding shares of NACT (the “NACT
Acquisition™}). On February 17, 1998, the NACT Acquisition was completed with GST USA recanang $59.7 muilion in
cash and 1,429,907 restricied sh:.m’ 9!‘ ke Company’s common stock. These shares had an iunial fawr value of
2pproximately $26.9 million. In addition, the Company issued 740,43 non-qualified opnons o purchase Company
common stock 3t $11.15 per share and 106,586 non-qualified oftions 1o purchase Company common stock at §16 25
per share in exchange for subll:ll‘ln, 8 !|y all the options eld by .\AQT employees, which became immediately vested in
connection with the NACT Acquisitien. These options had an initial fair value of approxurately 58.4 million.

On February 24, 1998 the Company entered into a merger agreement with NACT rursuant 1o which the
Company agreed 10 2cquire al) of the shazes of NACT common steck not alieady owned by the Company or GST
USA. Pussuant 1o the terms of the merger agreement, each share of NACT common stock w il be converted into shares
of Company common stock having a value of $17.50 per share tased on the average of the duly closing pnce of
Company common stock on ke Nasdaq Natjonal Market for a pre-defined period prior to the closing (the “Closing
Price™), provided that if the Closing Price is more than 525.52, then each share of NACT comm.up stock silf be
converied into 0.6857 shares of Companﬁcomon stock. If the Closing Prce is less than 520 §8, then the Company
may elect to terminate the agpreement The merger is subject to, among other thungs. the 2pproval of the NACT
stockholders and the sarisfaction of certain other customary condinons. This merger 18 expecied to be consummated in
July 1998,

On August 24, 1996, Acerotel, Ltd. and Aerotel U S.A. Inc, (collecnnelv. “"Aetotel”) cormmenced 21 xcton
against NACT and a customer of NACT in the United States Dismet Cour, Southern Dismnct of New York, alleging
thzt telephone systems manufacrured and sold by NACT incorporating prepaid detit ca:d feanues infringe upon
Acrotel's patent which was issced in November 1987 (the “Aerotel Patent™). Acrotel sc.ghi injuncnve reliefd,
damages in an unspecified xmount, damages of up to three 1imes damages found for wiiful iafmngement of e
Aerotel Patent and an order requiring NACT to publish 2 -aninien 2polegy 1o Aerciel. NACT iited 20 answer 2nd
Counterclaim in which it denied infringement of the Aerotel Patent and sought judgement that the Aerotel paient is
:avalid and unenforceable and that Aerotel has misused its patent in violation of ennmust lans. NACT has denied
1hat it has comrunted defamation, unfair competition and tori:ous interference with prospective business relations.
In August 1997, Aerotel amended its complaint to include as defecdanus GST, GST USA, and mo former execumve
oificers of NACT. The amended pleadings seek in excess of 518.7 mullion in damages and si'ege that GST and
GST U'SA have infringed the Aerotel patent, aided and atented infringement by others, including NACT, and
participated in, and aided and abetted alieged tortuous conduct by NACT. GST, GST USA and ke rwo former
executive officers of NACT have served answers denying sll material alleganons and intend 1o defend vigorously.

Under the werms of the Company’s stock purchase agreement with GST, the Company 2nd GST bave agreed to
share evenly the costs of any judgement agsinst NACT as a result of the Acrotel litigation, including NACT ‘s legal
fees. The Compapy believes that NACT has valid defenses to the Aerote! claims, however, an unfavorable decision
in this action could have s material adverse effect on the Company's financial position.  Any losses incurred by the
Ccmpany as a result of the Aerotel litigation will be accounted for as addirional NACT purchate pnce.

The acquisiton of the 67.3% majonty intezest in NACT has been accounted for using the pusrchase method of
accounting.  Accordingly, the results of NACT's operations have been included in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements from March 1, 1993, The purchase price of the majority interest in NACT was allocated 1o Lhe ret
assets acquired and to approximately $66.5 mullion of zu.rchued in-process R&D. Dunng the fiust quaner of 1998,
62.3%, or 5.6 mullion, of purchased in-process R&D, which consists of the salue of NACT products w the
development suge that are noi considered 10 have reached technological feambility, was expensed in accordance with
Lthe applicable accounting rules. The excess of purchase price over 57‘3% of the fair value of net assets acquired and
purchased in-process R&D, cummently estimated at approximately $38.3 nullion, has been recorded as goodwall and is
being amortized over a 20 year period.



Pro Forma Results of Operations

On a pro forma, unaudited basis, as if the acquisitions of ATI and NACT had occurted as of January 1, 1997
total sales, operating income, net income and diluted net income per common shase for the three mooths ended March
31, 1998 apd 1997 would have been approximaiely $38,593,000 and $32,220,000; $1,129,000 and 53,699,000;
522,000 and $2,244,000; énd $0.12 and SO.0, respectively. 000

These unaudited forma results have been ed for comparative purposes only and are not sanl
indicative of the results of%nn‘ops which would acmglly have occurted had the acquisitons been in el‘?::te;n mi
date indicated. In addition, gorhorl of the purchase price allocated 10 in-process R&D expensed in accordance with
spplicable accounting rules of $50.0 million will not recur, and thesefore, the pro forma results have been prepared

excluding this charge.

NOTE 3. INVENTORIES

Inventories consist of the following:

March 31 December 31
1998 1997

Switching systemns, frames and related circuit boards S 15940114 S 13,445,770
Tragsport and access products 598,418 779,674
Electronic components 6,948,217 4,879,213
Pay telephone pans 1,542,754 1,332,835
Work in progress 2,971,689 1,744,168
Other finished goods —_— 339017 2350258

S___28.340.209 $ 22,426,918

NOTE 4: GOODWTILL

Goodwill from acquisitions, representing the excess of purchase price paid over the valuc of riet assets
acquired, is as follows:

March 31 Ma¢ember 31
1998 1997
NACT S 38302,140 5 —
CIS 12,485,239 12,485,219
AlT 10,657,917 11,557,917
Galaxy 5,089,265 5,089,265
ATI 2,953,512 —
Other —3.014.062
. 14,522,135 34,166,483
Accumulated amortization ~{3.370279) {2.506.282
COTES s aietdet

Goodwill is being amortized on a stright-loe basis over & 15 to 20 year period. The Company reviews tbe
net carrying value of goodwill oo & regular basis, and if deemed necessary, charges ase recorded against curremt
operations for any impairment in the value of these assets. No pignificant impairment charges bave been recorded to
date. Goodwill is removed from the books when fully amortized.



NOTE s: DEBT

The Company has & $10.0.million revolving line of credit with & large Ewsopean bank. Ag of
. v ] £ Mauch
the Company had borrowings of $1.8 million outsnding under this factlity. These borrowing were rcpa:;io shle ::::

in April 1998.

The bank agreemnent, which expires in March 2001, conuins stindard lending ccx znants
- . P oot e lud

ratios, restrictions on dividends and limiwtions on addirional debt and the disposition of Compa..y T:s: “mign:'cu:::: ‘: !
paid at the rate of prime plus land 1/4% or Libor plus 2 and 1+2%5. at the opnon of the Comrany. ' '

NOTE 6: SPECIAL CHARGES

Special charges in the fust quarier of 1998 included 56.6 mallion for costs related to the consolidation of
several operations and the Company exit from the congact manufacruring business. The Company's AIT :;:d circunt
board repair operations have been consolidated into a new facility in Orlando, Flonda; the C Omp:..ny'; o
manufachuring operations have moved from Orlando to a new faciliry in Alpharena, Georgia; and the Company’
Scotsdale, Arizona operations are being integrated into ATI's facility in Wilmington, Massackusens Theps ci,:x
charges included §3,260,000 to cost of sales for obsolete and redundant inventories and $3.230.000 f;:lr se\'erpa.ncc
benefits, lease terminations, idle equipment and other phase-down expenses related 1o the censolidaron program

NOTE 7. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Effective in 1997, the Company adopted Statemnent of Financial Accounting Standards No 12§

Share™. The computation of basic earnings per share is based on the weighted a?e:agc?-i‘.'c'cro'olt"cscnfmon sg}:ns:::
outsinding during the period. The computnen of diluted earnings per share is Based on the weighied average number
of common shares outstanding plus, when their effect is dilutive, potenrial common stock ¢corsistig of shares subject
1o stock opticns, stock warrots and convertible notes. Potenrial commen siock shares of 521,168 were inr.ludecjl in
computing diluted eamings per share for the first quarter of 1997. A toul of 1,204,000 and 1,236,000 shares of
conumion stock held in escrow fiom certain acquisitions and a license agreement were excluded from the earnings per
shase calculations for the three months ended March 31, 1998 and 1997, respecrively, because the condirions fo Slea

of shares from escrow had not been satisfied. Tie.easc

Common stock issued and outsanding at March 31, 1998 and 1997 was 21,705,887 and 17.662,007 shares
respectively. T '



NOTE 8. PENDING ACQUISITION

On February 12, 1998, the Company executed a lemer of intent to acquite Chemry Communicarions
Incorporated, Ab/aResurgens Communications Group ("RCG"), and Cherry Communications U.K. Limited ("Cherry
U.K., and together with RCG, “Resurgens”). On May 12, 1998, the Company signed definitive agreements 10 acquise
Resurgens. The agrecment i0 acquire RCG is subject 10 the approval of the Bankruptcy Cuurt. The transactions
which will be accounted for under the purchase method of accounting, are cumrently expected to close in .-\ugus;

1998,

Pursuant to the terms of the agreements, the creditors of RCG and the sharcholdess of Cherry UK. will
receive approximately 3.7 million restricted shares of Company common stock 1n the aggregate, with an c:imated
fair value of approximately 550 million. In addition, the RCG creditors and Cherry UK. shareboldess have the right
10 teceive addirionsl consideration of up to 7.5 million zestricted shares of Company commion stock over the next
rwo and one-half years, contingent upon the schievement of ceruin EBITDA levels by Resurgens during this
ameframe. The tansaction is subject to, among other things, Resurgens exceeding pre-defined levels of monthly
revenues and gross margin, the receipt of the fequisite corporate and regulatory approvals, the confirmarion of
RCG"s Plan of Reorganizarion and the approval of Company stockholders.

RCG, cumeatly operating under the prowction of Chapter 11 of the United States Bankquptcy Code, and
Cherry UK. are facilities-based providers of international nerwork access, commonly referred 10 in the industry as
carriers® carrier. In October 1997, Joha D. (“Jack™} Phillips, 1 director of the Company, entered into a series of
agreements whereby, among other things, he became the new Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Resurgens.
RCG filed for bankruptey protecrion shomly theseafter. WorldCom, Inc. ("WorldCom™), 2 major customer and
vendor of Resurgens, has subsequently provided Resurgens approximately $26 nuilion of direct finzncia) suppon
thzough a debtor in possession facility and additiona! financial suppon, primanly through trade credits. Upen
completion of the Resurgens acquisition, WorldCom is expected to own approximately 15%% « "Compaay on a fully
diluted basis.



{TEM 7 - MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview -

The Company develops, man_t:fl_cnnes ard markels wuchne ind wuaeless swiching, wanspon and access
products for the global telecommunicanions markets. The producy offered by the Company wclude those
mznufacnured by the Company as well as those manufactured by other telecommunicanons equipment manufacturers.
To support and complement its product sales, \he Company also provides its customers with 2 bread range of desigm,
engineering, manufacturing, testing, wstailation, repair and other vajue-added services.

During 1995 and 1996, the Company comrpleted staiegic 3nd financial resguciunng FrogTams 1o sgengthen
is management team, reposition the Company s 3 provider of telecommunucations producss, improve is financ:al
condition, reduce its operating coss and positicn the Company for future growth. These programs were underaken
{ollowing the significant losses incurred by the Comgany in the casly 1990s, prinuaaly due to a discontnued smarnt pay
telephone business, and 1o wke advanuge of the s:gg-mﬁcam Cpowl.h ogpommirie: within (ke Company's enisting
custormer base and related markets. In November 1994, the Company began to rebwild 1is management team and
change its sTategic focus. Th_e_Compmy strengthened its management team by appointing a rew Chief Execunve
Officer and by recruiting and hiring 2 new Prelident and Chief Operating Officer, Executive Vice President of Business
Develepment and experienced product development and manufacturing professionals. These individuals, together with
cther kev rranagers recruited into the Company, have brought signuficant experience 11 manufacturng and markenng
relecomsminicanons equipment 1o the Company.

Tre Company acquired five businesses Surng 1995 0 1997 in an effort 0 brosden s lne of swuching,
Tanspeort and access preducts, enhance its product Cevelopment capabilities and strengtren iis techracz] base, Effeczie
May 1693, e Company xcquired AIT, l.nc: (“AIT"). a tuil senvice pros:der of Nonziera Telecom switchung systems.
2dd-on frames and related circuit boards; effective October 1995, ihe Company acquired Wesiec Cormmunications, lrc.
("Westee™), a provider of -wireless producis and services primunly jo the cable television nlusiy: effecnve
January 1996, the Company acquired Sunrise Sierrs, Inc. ("Sunrise™, a developer and manufacnwer of inteiligernt
irspent and accass products; effective January 1997, the Company acqured Cellular LiTastuinure Supply, Inc
(“CIS™, a provider of mobile retwork equipment and related Zesign. msullaten 2ad techy. ¢l suzpon senvices 0
cellular, PCS and other wireless service providess; and effective Avgust 1997, (e Company acquired Galany Personal
Communicaton Services (“Galaxy”). 8 RF engineering firm that provide sysiem design. implemenianon. optimization
ind citer value-added radio engineering and constising services 0 (ne wiceless service markets. Tre markess sened
tv CIS 2nd Galaxy complement the Company's ;zdinonal ielephone service provider and prvare network operator
markets.

In the first quasier of 1598, the Company zequired ATI, a manufacturer of digizl point-to-pont nucrowase
radjo sysiemms for short and long haul applications and a majority suake in NACT, a proviler of advanced
elecommu_ications switching platdorms w (th imegraied applications sofiware. In May 1598, e Company signed
definitive agreements o acquire Resurgens, 3 facijities-based provider of international nemork xccess, comumonly
referted 1o in the industry a3 camiers’ camier. Thgse l:quisiricns have posiioned the Company to offer its customers
a complete telecommunicationa network sclution , including proprietary equipment, planming acd engiceenng services
and sccess to interpatonal long distance.

The Company tealized significant improvements in its sales and operating results since 1994 as a result of the
acquisidons and internal b indauves. The Co y's o1l sales increased by 82.3% in 1997, §9.2%% in 1996 and
97.2% in 1995. Total ssles for the first quanier of 1998 increased by 68.0% over the founth quarter of 1997, As the
Company increased its product sales from 18.2% of totsl sales in 1994 10 79 0% of 1oul sales in (ke fust quarter of
1998, its gross profit margin before special chasges increased from 12.9% in 1994 to 21.1% in 1995, 29.4% 1n 1996,
34.6% in 1997 and 41.7% in tbe first quarter of 1998.  As a petcenuge of towsl sales, the Company's operanng income
{loss) before special :hus s increased from (8.5%%) in 1993 to 5.0%% in 1995, 14.4%% in 1996, 21 095 12 1997 and 27 9%%
in the first quaner of 1993. The Company will continue 10 seck funher improvements in gross profit margin over time
13 h|::n!duct offerings include more intermally develeped acquued ard licensed preducy continung proprewry
technology.

Although the Company has aggressively puisued acquisitions in tecent years, over €0 percent of the
Company's tous] sales growth since 1994 has come fiom ternal growth wninanves. i1ne Company has had
considerable success in growing businesses post acquisition, most notably AIT and CIS. as 2 result of i ability 10
rrovide working capital, an exicnsive base of telecommunicanons customers and » broad range of support sen ices.

10



Since January I, 1995, the Company has significantly strengthened its balance sheer theough i
operating tesulis, 3 $115.0 mullion sale of converuble subordinated notes, s $26.2 mullion secondasy ; bm::;:
offering, proceeds from stock wamant and op: 'on exercises, and a five-year $10.0 mullion credit facility. _ﬁ; Company
hag used this capital for acquisitions and 1o support the working capital requirements assocrated with the Company’s
growth. Thc Company’s workin capiual and stockholders' equity have increased from 52 3 mullion and $1.2 nullion
respectively, at Dec 31, 199410 $120.7 muilion and SB9.1 mullion, refpecricely, at March 31,1998, '

Results of Operations

The following uble seta forth certain financial dats, representing each line item wn the Company's consolidated
suatements of operations expressed as a percentage of towl sales, except other daw, which s expressed as a percentage
of the applicable revenue type:

Quarter Ended March 31,
1998 1997
Statement of Operations Data:
Sales of products 79.0% 76.4%%
Service revenues 210 A6
Total sales 100.0 100.0
Cost of products sold 6.9 9.2
Cost of services 208 202
Total cost of sales £1.7 494
Gross profit 3213 06
Engineering and development 2.2 1.6
Selling, gecers] and administrative 9.1 9.4
Amortization of goodwill 2.4 14
In-process research and development 140.0 .-
Special charges 921 —
Operating income (loss) (120.5) 18.2
Interest and other income 5 1.6
Interest expense . {42}
Income {loss) before income axes
and minoerity interests {131.2) 19.8
Income taxes . 2335 69
Income (loss) before minonity interests (134.7) 12.9
Minority interests in earnings of subsidiary 19 e
Net income (loss} (136.6)% 12.9%
OQther Data:
Gross Margin (Before Special Charges):
Products 45.3% 35.6%
Services 28.1 14.6



Three Months Ended March 31, 1998 Compared 10 Three Months Ended March 31, 1997

Sales. Toul sales increased $15.5 mullion, or 76.4%%, 10 $35.7 multion in the first quarter of 1998 from $2
e ) 03
million in the furst quarter of 1997. Product sales :acreased tg 79 0% of towl sales in the fi m

76.4%% in the first quasner bf 1997. ' i ke furs1 quarter of 1998 from

Product siles increased $32.8 million, or $2.5%, 1o $18.2 mullion w the fust quaner of 199
million in the fisst er of 1997. The increase 1elated 1o sales generated by NACT a- -\'I;r : huch f-e?:?cqi?ea
effective Merch 1, 1998 and February 1, 1998, respecrively. and an increase of mobile nerwork cquipment sold by CIS

Service revenues increased $2.7 mullion, or 56.9%, 10 $7.5 nullion in the first quarer of 3
million in the firss quaster of 1997. The increase related 1o engineering senices prrt‘om?ed br: (ojalﬁzs ﬁﬂﬂ s\:l;i
acquired effective July 1, 1997, and additional pay t¢lephone refurbishment revenues. ’ e

Gross Proyit. Gross profit increased 55.3 mullion, or §6.0%, to $11.5 muilion tn the first quane
56.2 million in the er of 1997. Goss profit margin increased 1o 32.3%% in the first quarier of 195322353 6
in the first quarter of 1997. Gross profit masgin excluding the special charge of approxymtely §3.4 mullion (see Note 6
10 “Financial Sutement”) was 41.7% in the firss ?umer of 1998 The improved performance resulted flom economues
of scale assceizied with the 76.4% increase in 1o1al s2les and the chasge in sales mux to producis, which gererally cary
2 higher gross profit margin than service revenues. ;

Gross profit margin on preducts sold increased to <0.6%% wn the first quanter of 1998 fium 35.6%
quarter of 1997. Gross profit margi excluding the special charge was 45.3%% in the first quaner nFT99§‘.6T1:,¢mimu.’.:°{'.?;
margins related to the NACT ATI sales of |l::opn¢u.ry equipment and systems 3ad the wcrease i sales of CIS
mobile nerwork equd:%me'm. all of which ﬂmgl Iy c;}ﬂ'yrmn:;ins in efxcess of 200°%  The Company's iwitching
oroducts experienced declines in gross margin durtag the first quarter of 1958 pmanly relaed : m = ,
cales of Northern Telecom add-on frames and related circuit boards. F ¥ felired 1o margn pressure on

Gross profit margin on service revenues »as 1.0%5 i e first quarter of 1598 2s compured to 13 6%
first quarter of 1997. Gross prohit mar in excluding the specizl charge was 28 1°5 :n the :';:stpqumer of 199°Sm1?-:
improvemert was due 10 the addition of consulting revenues frem Galany. which was 2cqu “2d effecnne July | 1997
and improved margins on pay telephone refurbishrment revernues. t '

Engineering and Develgpment. Engineering ar.d development expenses incredsed $472.000 29,195, ¢
$758,000 in the riyst quarter of 1998 from 5316000 in the iisst quaner of 1997 Tre wnirease a 2;-;:-3;:; W ;‘:
zrnbutable o the acquisitions of NACT and AT] and the connaved expansien of the Company’s dev CIDPT;-CN gToup
Engincering ar.d development expenses increased 10 2.2 of tousl sales wn the fust quaner of 1593 from 1 6% of lotal
sales in the first quarter of 1997.

Selling, General ord Adminisrrative Expenses. Selling, general and adminismanve expenses i 3
million, or 69.5%, to $3.3 million in the first quarter of 1998 frgm 51.9 mllion in the fus c.!,:uanx:e: ?IF rle‘;;'eld S‘I!l-'c
increase related primarily to expenses associated with the operations of NACT, ATl ard Galany, which were acquued
subsequent to the first quarter of 1997, As a percentage of toul sales, sellicg, gereral and rdmumistranve expenses
decreased 10 9.1% in the first quaner of 1998 from 9.5% in the first quarter of 1997,

Amornizarion of Goodwill. Amortization of goodwill increased $550,000 to 864,000 1n thie first qu
1998 from $284,000 in the first quarter of 1997, primanly as a result of goodwall recorded mLconnec"t:o:l:uTt}:rdg:
NACT, ATI and Galary acquisitions and additional goodwill recorded related 10 earmnout performances for the CIS
AIT and Galaxy acquisitons. ’

Operan’n% Income Before Special Charges. Operaving income before special charges increased $6.3 mllion,

or 171.3%, 10 $10.0 million in the first quarter of 1998 from 53.7 mullion in the {ust quarter of 1997 Operanng i
margin increased to 27.9% in the first quarter of 1998 from 18 2% 1 the first qumcrqof 1997, FEranag income

12
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FRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS

wing table scts forth information conceming \he beachicial owneiship of World Access Common

folle
f::oug]y 10, 1599, by (1) each ptsion known 10 World Access 10 be the bencBicisl owner of five percent
gioek gof the World Access C'mf"l Stock, (ii) each of 1he directors and exccutive o%icers of World Access
o ) the directors ard ¢xecutive oacen_ f" World Acceu'n B group. This table band' on information
:‘:‘ wded BY World Aceess diectors, caccutive oficers and principal stockholders.
Py v
Nyme Shars Onesd(l)  _sad Wermon(dy Beshcnilp Oeord | Oepee
.—-"""_f
LIR.C”?"” S LLLE LR LA 2327943 — 2,321,945 10.5%
FME Baxter & Associstes, Lid(d) ... 1,843,640 - 1.841,640 3.4
H.ﬂwh‘ & Q“i“ GI‘DBF(.‘) ......... 1,429 907 . 1.929.907 6.5
ven A, Odomtd(6}(7) . . 267410 £79.000 946.410 12
;3 g Ravillet ..o 118,000 — 318,000 1.5
H'mk!“ 2 Wert$(?) -..-oonoeinn .o 16,621 268,125 284,746 13
5 J. Clesrmant(8) ... ....... 172,210 62,000 234210 1.1
ark A aerﬂelwl ----------------- 79.953 116,2¢0 191,953 .
e D PHUNPIY . - 117,340 117,20 .
s N. Madigang ... . oo 2.143 47,500 49,643 -
H"‘h Gnhlm* ............ e e e — — —— a
Al directors 254 executive offcey 23 a
growp (8 PEISORI) +vviniernninnn 856,337 1,290,215 2,156,552 9.3
Y
s Less than oae percent
Direcior
Eaccutive Offcer

1) Bepeficial owaenhip has beea determined i accordance with Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act
(“Rule 13d-3"). Unless otheraise noted, World Access believes that all pervons named ia tke table bave
sole votizg snd iavestment power with sespect to all shares of World Access Coms 5n Stock beacicially
owned by them.

(2) lacludes sbarcs which may be acquired by whe exercite of stock options and wwrants granted hy World
Access aad excreisable oa er before Scplermber 10, 199€.

(3) Based upon its Schedula 13G fled on May 10, 1998, Fidelity Mazagement & Researci Company
(“Fidelity”’), 2 Devoashirc Street, Boston, Massachuserts 02109, a wholly-owned subsictizry of FMR
Corp. and &3 investraent adviser xgistered uader Section 203 of the Investment Advisers Actof 1920, is
1be beneficial owner of the shares of World Aceess Common Stock listed above as 2 result of acting 21
investment adviser 10 various investment companics registered under Sectioa § of the [nvestment
Company Act of 1940. The emount listed above includes 641,335 shases of World Access Common
Stock issuable upon conversion of the 4.5% Coavertible Subordinsted Notes of World Access beld by
Fidelity or its afBlistes.

{4) Based upen its Schedule 13G Blcd on Februazy 17, 1998, Pilgrim Batier & Associates, Lids (“Pilgrim
Baxter’) is an investmernt advisor registered under section 203 of the Invesiment Advisors Act of 1940
I1s principal place of business is 923 Duperwil Rosd, Wayne, Pencsylvania 15087, Of the 1012l shares of
World Access Common Stock beacficlally owned by it, Pilgrias Baxter bas sols power to vote or 10 direct
tha vete of only 1,601,340 skares of World Access Comman Stock

(5) Based on its Schedule 11G filed oa March 9. 1998, Hambracht & Quist Group ("H&Q Group™) may be
deemed 1o own the shares of World Access Common Stock owned by Hambrecht & Quist California
("H&Q California”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of H&Q Group. H&Q Group’s aod H&Q Cabfornis’s
principel placa of busicess is Onc Bushk Street, San Francisco, California 54104,

(6) Includes 18,000 sbares beld in the aggregata by two minor children of Mr. Odom.



Sigrature

After fcasonable inquiry and to the best ol wy knowludye and
belief, | certify that the infocraatign set focth wn Lhig
Schedule 13G in coanection with MR Corp.‘s bencticial
ownership of Lhe coamon stock of Wo.ld Access. [ncurporated ut
April 30, 1998 is true, coamplete and correct.

May LO, 1998
Date

/3/Eric D. Roitec
Signature

Eric 0. Roiter
Duly avthorized under Power of
Attocnay
dated Decepber 30, 1997, by
and on behalf
aof MR Corp. and its dicect
and ipdirect
subpldlaries

SCHEOULE 13G - TO BE IMCLUOED INM STATLMENTS
FILED PURSUANT TO RULE 13d-1(b) or 1)d-2(b)

Pursuant to tha instructions in Item 7 of Schedule 13G, Fidelity

t & Resecarch Company ("Videlity”), 82 Dovonshlre Street, Uoston,
Massachusetts 02109, a wholly-owned subsidiacy of FWR Corp. and an lnvastment
sdviser cegistered undar Section 203 of the Investment Advisers Act of 1940,
i3 the boneficial ownac of 2,327,945 shates or 10.51t of the common stochk
outstanding of Morld Accoss, Incorporated {(“the Company®™) as a regult of
scting a3 investment adviser to vacious lnvestment companies rogistered under
Section 8 of the Investmcnt Company Act of 1943. ‘The nuaber of shares of
compon stock of World Access, Incorporated owncd by the investment companics
at April 30, 1999 included 641,345 shares ol common stock resulting from the
aasumed conversion of 23,750,000 shares of the World Access CNV 4.5% 10/01/02
144A {27.004219 shares af common stock [ocr cach share of the World Access CWV
4.5% 10701702 144A4).
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The awnurship of one investment company, Fidelity Select
Telecommunlcations, amounted Lo 1,241,300 gharcs or 5.6LV of the vommon siock
outstanding. Fidelity Select Telecommunications has (Ls peincipal businesy
offace at 82 Devonshice Street, Boston, Massachuselis 02109,

Edwatd €. Johnson Jd, FMR Corp.., Lhiough i1ts cunteol of Fidelity, ond Lhe
funds cach he3 sole power Lo dispose of the 2,327, M5 shares gwncd by Lbe
tunds,

Neither tMR Corp. nor Edward C. Jobuson 3d, Chaicmun ol FMH Curp., has
the solc power to vole or dicect the woting of the shaces owned digectly by
the Fidelity Funds, whlich power resides with Lhe Funds' Bourds of Teusteos.
Fidelity cacrcics out the voting of the shaves under wiitten guidelines
established by Lhe Funds® Hoards of Truatoes.

renbors of the Edward €. Johnson Jd family and trusts for theic bencfat
src the predominent ownaras of Claas B shares of common slock of PR Cocp.,
cepreacoting approximately 49% of the voting power of FMR Cocp. Mr. Jobnason
3d owns 12.01 and Abigsil Johnson owns 24.5% of the aggregate outstandiag
voting stock of FHR Corp. Mr. Johnson 3d is Chaicman of FMR Cozp. and Abigail
P. Johnzon is a Dicoctor of FHM Corp. The Johnsoun family qroup and oll other
Claas B sharehalders hava cntered into a sharcholders' voling agrecempent under
which all Class B shaccs will be votod in accourdance with the mejority vote of
Class B shares. Accordingly, through thuir owncrship ol vating common stack
and the cxecution of tho sharchoidora' woting agrecment, members of the
Johnson tosily may be deemed, under Lhe L[ovestment Compuny Act of 194D, to
form & controlling group with respecl to FMR Carp.

SCUEDULE 1)G - TO DE INCLUDED IN STATEMENTS
FILED PURSUANT TO RULE 13d-1(b) or Ll)d-2[b)
RULE 1)d-1{f}{1) AGREEMENT

The undarsiqued persons, on May L0, 1998, agree and consent Lo the joint
filing on their bohell of this Scheduls 1)G in conncctlon with their
beneficial ownocship of the common atoch of World Access., Incorporated at
Hpr;l. JO. 199.-
FHMR Corp.
by /a/Ecic 0. Roiter
Eric D. Roiter
Ouly authorized under Power of
Attorncy
and on behalft )
of PMR Corp. and ita direct
and indirect aubsidisries
Edward C. Johnson 1d

av
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. EXHIBIT B .

List of 10% or Greater Direct and Indirect

Stockholders of WAXS INC.
Name & Address Citizenship _ Principal Business
Direct Stockholder:
Fidelity Management & Research Company u.s. Invest:ent advisor

82 Devonshire Street
Boston, MA 02109

Fidelity Management & Research Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary ot FMR Corp.
Indirect Stockholder:

FMR Corp. U.s. Investment advisor
82 Devonshire Street
Boston, MA 02109

None of the shareholders of FMR Corp. own 2 10% or greater interest in WAXS INC.



. EXHIBIT C .

Interlocking Directorates of WAXS INC,

Director Other Directorates

Stephen J. Clearman Expert Software, Inc.
MemberWorks Incorporated
SeaMED Corporation

Desk Talk Systems, Inc.
Storeroom Solutions, Inc.

Stephen E. Raville Eltrax Systems, Inc.
Charter Communications International, Inc.
USBA, Inc.
First Southeastern Corporation
Cleveland Electric, Inc.
MK Industries, Inc.
S & J Investments, Inc.

Hensley E. West None
Steven A. Odom None
John D. Phillips Cherry Communications Incorpo. ated

d/b/a Resurgens Communications Group
Cherry Communications, U.K., Lid.





